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(1 Corn 0blic
rn'SSin/1In the matter of the Application of

NextGen Communications, Inc.
for a Certificate of Service Authority to
Provide Basic Local Telecommunications Services
in the State of Missouri and to Classify Said
Services and the Company as Competitive.

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE AUTHORITY
TO PROVIDE TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICE AND

FOR COMPETITIVE CLASSIFICATION

Comes now NextGen Communications, Inc. ("NextGen") by its undersigned counsel, and

hereby applies pursuant to Sections 392.361, 392.410, 392.420, and 392.430, 392.450 RSMo 2000, the

Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996, 4 CSR 240-3.510 and 4 CSR 240-2.060, for authority to

provide aggregate and transport emergency local, VoIP, telemetric, PBX, and mobile E9-1-1 traffic,

manage and transmit location and calling number data, and provide call routing management for the

delivery of emergency calls to Public Service Answering Points (PSAPs) throughout the State of

Missouri and to classify said service and company as competitive. In support of its application states as

follows:

1. Applicant is a corporation duly organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of

the State of Maryland and is authorized to conduct business in the State of Missouri. See Exhibit A for

Articles ofIncorporation and Certificate of Authority to conduct business in Missouri.

2. All inquiries, correspondence, communications, pleadings, notices, orders and decisions

relating to the case should be addressed to:
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Kim Robert Scovill
Senior Director - Legal and Regulatory
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.
275 West Street - 4th Floor
Annapolis, MD 21401
Tel: 410-349-7097
Fax: 410-295-1884
kscovill@telecomsys.com

Charles W. Hatfield, Esq.
Stinson Morrison Hecker LLP
230 W. McCarty Street
Jefferson City, Missouri 65101
Tel: 573-636-6263
Fax: 573-636-6231
chatfield@stinson.com

H. Russell Frisby, Esq.
Stinson Morrison Hecker LLP
1150 18th Street, N.W., Suite 800
Washington, D.C.20036
Tel: 202-785-9100
Fax:202-785-9163
Email:rfrisby@stinson.com

3. NextGen proposes to provide basic local exchange telecommunications service on a

(facilities) basis, throughout the entire State of Missouri, including all exchanges currently served by the

large and small incumbent local exchange telecommunications company(ies) of Southwestern Bell

Telephone, L.P. d/b/a AT&T Missouri, Embarq Missouri, Inc. d/b/a Embarq, CenturyTei of Missouri,

LLC d/b/a CenturyTe1, and/or Spectra Communications Group, LLC d/b/a! CenturyTel.

4. Pursuant to this application NextGen seeks certification so that it may provide aggregate

and transport emergency local, VoIP, telemetric, PBX, and mobile E9-1-1 traffic, manage, and transmit

location and calling number data, and provide call routing management for the delivery of emergency

calls to Public Service Answering Points (PSAPs) throughout Missouri. NextGen's services are used by

large wireless carriers, VoIP providers, cable TV system operators who provide telecommunications
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services andlor VoIP, telemetric operators, PBX users, and mobile voice service providers. NextGen

does not currently provide long distance voice toll services 01' local exchange voice dial tone services to

residential 01' business customers and does not plan to offer same in the future. However, in order to

aggregate and transport emergency calls andlor calling data, NextGen may require the same sort of

interconnection and co-location made available to certificated Competitive Local Exchange Carriers

("CLECs").

In addition, certification will enable NextGen to acquire and manage Pseudo Automatic Number

Identification ("pANI") numbering resources, which are essential to routing emergency calls, pursuant

to the Federal Communications Commission's ("FCC's") directive of September 8, 2006 which states

that CLEC celtification is now required for pANI management. Furtherance of this FCC objective and

of the availability of competitive sources for emergency call routing and management are in the public

interest.

5. NextGen possesses the technical and managerial expeltise and experience necessary to

provide the services it proposes. NextGen is the wholly owned subsidiary of TeleCommunication

Systems, Inc. ("TCS") the leading u1ll'egulated wireless and VoIP 911 location and call data provider in

the nation. With unlimited access to these resources, NextGen is technically qualified to provide the

proposed local exchange and interexchange services in Missouri. NextGen's management team has

extensive management and telecommunications experience. TCS provides a variety of

telecommunications products and services domestically and internationally to approximately 42 wireless

call'iers including Short Message Service ("SMS") messaging, Wireless Internet Gateway, satellite

communications, information technologies ("IT") management services, and location based services.

This expertise in E9-l-1 has been developed over the last 9 years in the wireless industry, providing

E9-1-1 service to wireless carriers. In that capacity, NextGen has developed a knowledge base and
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hands-on experience in managing wireless automatic location identification ("ALI") databases,

establishing ALI circuits, provisioning ALI databases and selective routers, and provisioning voice and

data circuits to a wide variety of selective routers. As a Mobile Positioning Center vendor, we are familiar

with PSAP messaging, ALI screen formatting, and all messaging related to Phase I and Phase 2

wireless E9-1-1 deployments. In addition, we provide Assisted Global Positioning System Positioning

Determining Entity service for E9-11 Phase 2 and hosts the Wide Area Reference Network used by

virtually all AGPS users in the United States.

NextGen's technological qualifications are also reflected in its officers and directors. NextGen's

key managerial personnel and their qualifications are set forth in more detail in the attached Exhibit B.

As Exhibit B illustrates, NextGen possesses the managerial and technical expertise necessary to provide

the services it proposes to offer in Nevada. TCS, NextGen's parent corporation employs approximately

1,050 highly- qualified individuals that represent some of the most accomplished innovators and

experienced teclmical experts in the telecommunications industry. Gathered from the

telecommunications, public safety, and software development industries, NextGen's team of

professionals is at the forefront of industry i1movation, development, and standard-setting. These

individuals are uniquely qualified to and design, implement, and manage E9-1-1 solutions.

6. NextGen also possesses the necessary financial resources to provide service in the State of

Missouri. As noted above, NextGen is a wholly owned subsidiary of TCS, whose stock is publically

traded (NASDAQ: TSYS). NextGen uses consolidated accounting with its parent TCS and does not

maintain a separate public income statement or balance sheet. NextGen's finances are identical to its

parent company's. Exhibit C, TCS's latest 10-Q SEC filing demonstrates that NextGen possesses

sufficient financial resources to provide the services it proposes in this application competently and

effectively.

7. NextGen seeks classification of itself and its services as competitive.
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8. NextGen does not provide long distance toll services or local exchange dial tone services

to residential or business customers, and does not intend to provide such services. Rather, NextGen

provides carrier-to-carrier E9ll call routing, location, and information services to large wireline, VoIP,

and wireless voice service providers. NextGen's intended customers include municipal, county, or state

governments operating E9ll or Next Generation E9ll networks; private teleconllllunications providers

of LEC, CLEC, wireless, or VolP services with an obligation to route emergency 911 calls to the

appropriate PSAP; or private enterprises with a PBX telephone system with appropriate state and/or

federal authority or obligation to route emergency calls to the appropriate PSAPs. NextGen will give

consideration to equitable access for all Missourians, regardless of where they might reside or their

income, to affordable telecommunications services in NextGen's proposed service areas in accordance

with applicable law.

9. NextGen does not send bills to collect money from, or otherwise contact the end-users of

its carrier customers. However, NextGen is willing to comply with all applicable Commission rules and

is willing to meet all relevant service standards, including, but not limited to billing, quality of service,

and tariff filing and maintenance in a manner consistent with the Commission's requirements for

incumbent local exchange carrier(s) with whom NextGen seeks authority to compete. Additionally,

NextGen agrees that, pursuant to Section 392.455(3) & (4) RSMo 2000, its service area shall be no

smaller than an exchange. Consistent with the Commission's treatment of other certificated competitive

local exchange telecommunications companies, NextGen requests the following statutes and regulations

be waived for and its basic local exchange services offerings:

Statutes
392.210.2
392.240.1
392.270
392.280
392.290

Uniform System of Accounts
Just & Reasonable Rates
Ascertain Property Values
Depreciation Accounts
Issuance of Securities
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392.300.2
392.310
392.320
392.330
392.340

Acquisition of Stock
Issuance of stock and debt
Stock dividend payment
Issuance of securities, debts & notes
Reorganizations

Commission Rules
4 CSR 240-10.020 Depreciation fund income
4 CSR 240-30.040 Uniform system of accounts

4 CSR 240-3.550(5)(C) File exchange boundary maps with Commission

10. Applicant will promptly file said tariffs bearing no less than 45 day effective date with

the Commission in a manner consistent with the Commission's practice in similar cases. In any

circumstance, Applicant will file its proposed basic local exchange telecommunications service tariff

no later than 30 days after Commission approval of Applicant's interconnection and/or resale

agreement.

II. NextGen submits that the public interest will be served by Commission approval of this

application because NextGen's proposed services will create and enhance competition and expand

customer service options consistent with the legislative goals set forth in the Federal

Telecommunications Act of 1996 and Chapter 392 RSMo. Prompt approval of this application also will

expand the availability of innovative, high quality, and reliable telecommunications services within the

State of Missouri.

12. NextGen submits that no annual report or assessment fees are overdue.

13. NextGen submits that it does not have any pending action or final unsatisfied judgment or

decisions against it from any state or federal agency or court which involves customer service or rates,

which action, judgment, or decision has occulTed within 3 years of the date of application.

14. NextGen submits, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 392.500 RSMo., as a

condition of certification and competitive classification, and in recognition of the fact that NextGen does

not intent to offer access services, Next Gen agrees that, unless otherwise ordered by the Commission,
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NextGen.s originating and terminating switched exchange access rates will be no greater than the lowest

Commission-approved corresponding access rates in effect for each ILEC within those service area(s)

NextGen seeks authority to provide service. Additionally, pursuant to the Commission's Report and

Order in Case No. TO-99-596, NextGen agrees that if the ILEC in whose service area NextGen is

operating decreases its originating and/or terminating access service rates, NextGen shall file an

appropriate tariff amendment to reduce its originating and/or terminating access rates within thirty (30)

days of the ILEC's reduction of its originating and/or terminating access rates in order to maintain the

cap on switched exchange access rates.

WHEREFORE, Applicant NextGen respectfully requests that the Commission grant it a

certificate of service authority to provide basic local telecommunications services as herein requested,

classify NextGen and its proposed services as competitive, and grant a waiver of the aforesaid statutes

and regulations.

Respectfully submitted,

ar es W. Hatfield, No. 403
230 W. McCarty Street
Jefferson City, Missouri 65
573-636-6263
573-636-6231 (fax)
chatfield@stinson.com

and

H. Russell Frisby, Esq.
1150 18'h Street, N.W., Suite 800
Washington, D.C.20036
Tel: 202-785-9100
Fax:202-785-9163
rfrisby@stinson.com
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State of Missouri
RabiD CarnahAn, Secrefary of State

Corp:~rt.tl~DJ D1vltl~n

PO 8llx 118/600 W. Malll SL, Rl'l'l. 311
JefTmon C1I)', MO 65102

File Number.

F01079173
Date Flied: 08/17/2010

Robin Carnahan

secretary of State I·

Application for Certificate of Authority
. For a Foreign For-Profit Corporation

(Subffll'""ith}lfug!u ojJJJS.OO).

J. The 'oorporalion's name is Ne"'tOen Communications, Inc.

and it is organized and exist(ng under the laws of·.:M~3l)'~I::,n:::d:..... _

2. The name iI will use in Missouri i$~N"."XI"O"."n.:::c."m=m:::UIl::,In"c"':::ti.::on,,s,-.I:::n.::. _

3. The date'of its lneorpol'i'ltion was~1.:;OfJ.=712,:O:.,Q'i8,,==,- __•and the period of its duratIon it ,p""Jjl=etlla=Ic- ,....,c-
. mMNd~~

4..The address of Us principal place Qfbusil\MS is ::.27;.;5;..W=,.;.;t;:S::.treet= .;;Ann=''''p.;.o;;,lis==..;;,M.;;'lY'"';lan=d.;.2.;;14..;O.;.I_
~~ ~~~~

S. The name and physical Bddre.9s offts registered agent and offiooln the State ofMisSOllr1 Is

CSC·Lawyers IncQrporating SeJ'Vlc.e Company. 221 BolivatStrtet,Jeft'ctsOn City, MO 65101
QlylSlatVlJp

6. The specific porpose(s) .of its business in Missouri are: ~ll''-''b''''''''ed~comm~~un'''''ln~..''''"'lc~ns~se~l'/~lce~s _,_-----

7. The Il3me ofils office1s and directors and Ih~ir business addresses arc as follows:
Officers . Name Address

President . Maunc-c B. rose' 275 West Street
CltylStotelZip

Annapolis, Maryland 21401

Aiutapolls, Maryland 21401

AnnapoJisr Mary181ld2140J

27·5 West street
275 West Sne.t

VI'.Presldenl _

Secreto.ry Bruce A. White

TreAsurer Thomas M. Brandt Jr.

Board of Dlrecton

Director Maurice B. Tos~.f'

Dircctor 11l(lmas M. Brandt, 11'.
Director ~-'- _

Director _

Dirootor _

Name and addre$$ to relum filed docwnent:

N'm •• _

Address. _

City, Stale, and Zip Code:

'----------------------_. _.__ .



8, The effective date ofthis document is the dale it is filed by Ih~ Secretary of Slate ofMissouri, untess you indicate a future dale, as

8112/10
11fl,P,!nltdN(!1M

In Affinnalion thereof, the facls maled above are true and cQueCI:
(flle undersign understands- that ral~ $tatettJents made In Ihis flUng are subject tQ the penatlies provided under S«:tlon 575.040, RSMo), .

;' Bruce A. White

Noto; You must submit current original W1lficate: of good stand~g or certificate of existence- with this application. This may be
oblained from your Secretary of Sfala or oilier authority that Issues cotporate charters.

Corp. 42 (031200B)



STATE OF MARYLAND
Department ofAssessments and Taxation

I, PAUL ll. ANDERSON OF THE STATE DEPARTMENT Of ASSESSMENTS AND TAXATION OF THE
STATE OF MARYLAND, DO HBREBY CERTIFY THATTHBDBPARTMBNT,13Y LAWS OF THB
STATB,IS THE CUSTODIAN OF THE RECORDS OF THIS STATE RELATING TO THB
FORPEITURE OR SUSPENSION OF CORPORATIONS, OR THB RIGHTS OF CORPORATIONS TO
TRANSAC£ BUSINESS IN THIS STATE, AND THAT I AM THE PROPER OFFICER TO EXECUTE
THIS CERTIPICATE.

I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT NBXTOEN COMMUNICATlONS,INC.,INCORPORATED OCTOBER 27,
2oo8,IS ACORPORATION DULY INCORPORATED AND EXISTING UNDER AND BY VIRTUB OF
THE LAWS OF MARYLAND AND THE CORPORATION HAS FILED ALL ANNUAL REPORTS
REQUJRED, HAS NO OUTSTANDING LATBFILING PENALTIES ON THOSE REPORTS, AND HAS
A RESIDENT AGENT. THEREFORE, THE CORPORATION IS ATTHB TIME OF THIS
CERTIFICATE IN GOOD.STANOlNG WITH THIS DEPARTMENT AND DULY AUTl-lORrZBD TO
EXERCISE ALL THBFOWERS RECITED IN ITS CHARTER OR CERTIFICATE OF
INCORPORATION, AND TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN MARYLAND.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,I HAVB HERBUNTO SUBSCRlBBD'MY SIGNATURBAND AFFIXBD THE
SEAL 01' THE STATB DEPARTMENT OF ASSESSMENTS AND TAXATION OF MARYLAND AT
)lALTIMORE ON THIS AUGUST [7,2010.

Paul B. Anderson
Charter Division

301 West Preston Street, Baltimore, Maryland 21201
Telephone Ballo. Melro (410) 767·1340/ OU/side Balto. Metro (888) 246·5941

MRS (Maryland Relay Service) (800) 735·2258 TT/Volce
Fax (410) 333.7097



mfS. fS· TO CER:rIFY THAT:

F.IRST: The !.1!ld"r",igll~> Eruoe A. Whit"" whpse add'res.s is 275. We",t St,
A.tUlapolis, MD..2Mbl, being a.t !east i 8 years orage, ilaes 1Ierooy fOtJ.n aeorporauor'cunder the
genera! laws·oHhe State .ofMaryland.

SBG0l>fD: The /lame of the wJiPoration {the "CmV0ration?') is:

Nell:tG'lJ:l Communications, he.

THlll.D:
lawful busin,css.

.FOURTH: 1'h",a:ddress of the principal office'ofll1e C01poration i~ this' &tate.
is 275.W"es! 81:, AmiapoJi(;, MlJ 21401.

PIfrrH: The namc a.nil ri4driws pf't(ti!.re1iL4eJ1.t llg()j)t ofthe.CorpomtioJJ in
Maryland is Brtjce A. Whitl'<, clo:1'e!eCbJilmUlllcatloll SysttlUlS, JilC;, 275 West St, AMap'o!ls,
MD 2140 j. Snid.resltfunt agantii? ll,citizett ~fMa!yl(Uld <ll\dit,etuaHy resfifes thereih.

SIXTH;. Til):: .~otirl illlnil:>~r ofshares. ofstoyjc whioh tb.e Corp0.rIltion has
a\tthodty to;jsw-e-.is 1,000 shates· ofCtllnriron- StO{)~, $Q..DQl imr v.~1,ie peqih?ie. The ij;ggregllte
par value- 9r~-n:auth;oljq;e{rsql)l:-e.sJi!l"'inuP(u- vahle.i& $1.06. A majority C:JtJhe 6ntit-e ·Boai:4· of
Oirecf0t;S, withollt:aetiMby tlje ~wekhf!1~!ji'S;.l}1~y &:iJellfl·the chai-tet··ttdncr<eas~ o~ rle.ereas<l the'
ag,gregatc number of shares ofst()"ck or tIm )lUlrtb'er ofs-hares ofstock o-fany class fui[t·t1ie
Corporation has authority to i~su>J:' .

SHVEl\1JH: Th<l (:o!po'atiol1·ihaU have a ho.ard of two directotS "n1ess tne
lIlunber is incr€>ased or decreased in ~c"otdaacaw'fth the Bylaws ofthe -C6rponitioh. How<;ver,
the number ofdireeto,rs shaH l1ev;et h.e lessJhll11 t;he. /11iuimum nmuher requiredby the Maryland
General (:orp.oration'Law. Th\'1·-iuitiltl,dircGto!t It'!'e:

Maurice B. Tose
Tholnas·M. Bt8.lldt1 Jr.

EiGHTH, . (1\) The Co:rpoi:atioh.i:eserves tlreJigl:lt to.1!-luk" 'lily atn\llld111e!lt
ofth.e ()h~J.icr, 110W- ot.hereaftecl' Imthod2ed by' [[()Y, indudfllg.an;,r. amendhl~nt. whkh; alters·the
QOllt.mct rights,as expressly set t<nth irb-llle (lJjartet"oJ' ilunliares.Qfp.iJlsta.ndiqg $t6l1k.

(p) The Board ofDirector£ofthd::oi"poranou may authorize
the issuanee from·time to time·ofshl!res ofits'sto'ck ofl)ny class, wlu;ther now or hereafter

f.AS1M21999.0K.1



authorized, or securities cO[Jvcrtib1e into shares of its ~lOck ofany class, whether now or
hereatl"er authorized. for ~uch consideration as the .Board of Directors may deem advisable,
sUbject to such restrictions or limitations, ifany, as may be set forth in tile Bylaws ofthe
Corporation.

(c) Notwithstanding any provisio[J oflaw requiring the
authorization of any action by a greaterproportion tha[J a majority of the total nlltllbcr <if shar~
ofal! classes ofcapital stock: or of the total Humber of shares of any class of capital stock, such
action shall be valid and eftective ifautllOt1zed by the affirmative vote ofthe holders of a
maJority ofth.e total number of shares ofal! classes outstanding and entitled to vote thereon,
except as otherwise provided in the charter.

NINTH: To the maximulll extent of Maryland statutoty or decisiol)ltllaw as
in effect fTom timo to time, no director or officer ofthe Corporation-shall be Hahle to the·
Corporatian or its stockholders tor moneyiamages. Neither the amendment nor repeal of this
Article, nor the adoption or amendment ofany Gtller provision of the ch~rter or Bylaws:
inconsistent with this Article, shall apply to or affect in any respect lhe apPlioability (lfthe
preceding sentence with respect to any ·act ot failure to act which occurred priodo such
amendmen.t, repeal or adoption. ..

TENTH: The Corpomlion shalf indenmify (A) its dlreetol1Hl~! officers,
whether Bcrving the Corporation 01' at its request any other entity, to the full'extellt reqtlired- 01'

permitted by the General Laws of the Sint~ of Maryland now or h9l:qafter in foree, including ihe
advBllCe of expenses under the proce.dures and to the tbll extent pemli1ted by law Mid (8) other
employees and agents to suoh extent as shall be authorized by the B'oard of Dlr«lo1's or the
Corporation's Bylaws and be permitted by law. The foregoing rights of indenUliIieation shaH
not be exclusive ofany other rights to whieh those seeking indemni11cationmay be·elltitled. Thc
Board of Dire.ctors lllay lake such action us is necessury to carry out t\J,ese indemmficatiol1
provisions an.i.hexpressly empow«red to ai:lopt, approve and amend from time to tiIhe spch by­
laws, resolutions or contracts implementing such provisions or sach fUrther hl~j'!Jll1lification
arrangements as may be permitted by law. No amendment ofthe charter of the'Corporation shall
limit or eliminate the right to indemnification Provided hereunder with respect to.acts or
omissions occurring pdor to such amendmcnt or repeal.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed thesc Articics ofIncorporation and
acknowledge tie same (0 be my act on.tliis 27th da.y ofOctobcr, 2008.

EASl\~2 J99908.1



Consent of Resident Ag!,ut

THE" UNDERSIGNED, hereby con~el1t~ to act as· resideHt agent in Mm:yland for (he
clltity.nanied in the attached rnslnn1'len(,

~ 0:''1%' '~, . -/'!.t f 'ii r;I I /I ;(;,.' ,<~(,. . ~1<....dL-.~__
fruce A. Wiliie.

'.
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Maurice B. Tose
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, and President ofTeS and

. President and CEO ofNextGen Communications, Inc.

Maurice B. Tose fOlmded TeleCommunication Systems (TCS) in 1987, initially as
a military contractor for software development and network projects. Since then, TCS has
evolved into a leader in wireless messaging and location technology. Today, TCS is
delivering the essential software, services, and solutions to wireless teleconimunication
carriers that enable people to better manage their mobile lifestyle.

,
Since its inception, the compauy has experienced significant growth, from

generating $28 million in revenues during its first 10 years to $58.1 million in revenues in
2000. The company has grown to more than 500 employees based principally in
Annapolis, Seattle and Tampa. In August of2000, TCS launclied itselfas a public
company with a successful Initial Public Offering (IPO) raising $92 million.

Bom in 1957 in Fort Bragg, N.C., Mr. Tose grew up in'Williamsbm'g, VA., and
attended public schools. He graduated from the United States Naval Academy in 1978
with a Bachelor ofScience degree in Operations Analysis. Following his graduation, he
served on active duty in the United States Navy for eight years in posts throughout the
United States, rising to the rank ofLieutenant. Tours ofduty at sea included USS Bagley
as Damage Control Assistant and as the Operations Officer on USS Mauna Kea, where
he was responsible for the operations and maintenance ofall voice and data
communications. After his service at sea, Mr. Tose returned innnediately to the Naval
Academy as an instructor. For more than 10 years, :Mr. Tose has been an active member
ofthe Naval Reserves, attaining the rank ofCommander, including an extensive
assigrnnent to the staffofthe United States Secretary ofDefense.

Prior to founding TCS, Mr. Tose was the Director ofDepartment ofDefense
Programs for Techmatics, Inc., headquartered in Silver Spring, Maryland. At Techmatics,
Mr. Tose was responsible for the marketing and management ofsystems integration
contracts for the DoD. These contracts involved the installation, maintenance, persormel
training and integrated logistics support for turnkey communications systems.



With over 21 years ofexperience providing technical solutions through operations
research techniques in engineering, telecommunications, complex automated data
processing and wireless systems, Mr. Tose and his company have been recognized
through the receipt ofnumerous awards including 2000 and 1997 Ernst &Young
Entrepreneur ofthe Year finalist, The Lamond Godwin Bridge Builders Award for
Excellence in Minority Business Relations, The national Association ofBlack
Telecommunication Professional's Granville T. Woods Award for Outstanding
Achievement, The AT&T SpectlUm Award for Innovators, three-time winner ofthe
Greater Washington Technology Fast 50 Award, two-time winner of the Maryland Fast
50 Award, the national Technology Fast 500 Award, five times included in the Black
Enterprise Top 100, and the Govemment Computer News Industry Information
Technology Award. Additionally, Mr. Tose is a member ofnumerous professional
organizations including the Wireless Data Forum, AT&T's Diversity Roundtable, the
International Engineering Consortium and the Intelligent Network Fomm.

Despite the hectic schedule ofa CEO, Mr. Tose has made community service a
priority. Current and past affiliations include: treasurer and vice president, u.s. Naval
Academy Class of 1978; member, Annapolis Jaycees and Amrapolis Kiwanis; treasurer,
vIce president, director Arundel on the Bay Homeowners Association; member, Budget
& Finance Council, Antioch Apostolic Church; co-founder, chairman ofthe board,
United States Naval Academy Samuel P. Massie Education Endowment (through which
TCS has provided over $75,000 in scholarships to at-risk youth in Amre Arundel County,
MD); member, A.J1J1apolis neck Small Area Planning Commission; member, board of
directors, First Night Amrapolis; member, board ofdirectors, Ginger Cover Retirement
Community.

Richard A. Young
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of TCS

Mr. Young directs all day-to-day activities in the company including goal setting,
performance monitoring, and deployment ofkeypersonnel. Mr. Young joined TCS in
1992. He has over twenty-seven years ofexperience in technology management, with in­
depth technical experience in hardware and software life cycle program management.
Prior to TCS, Mr. Young worked as Senior Manager for rCF Infonnation Technology,
Inc. where he was responsible for managing over thirty technical staff in designing and
developing applications to customer specifications. From 1986 to 1989, Mr. Young was
the Director ofthe Information Systems Department ofthe Navy Recruiting Command
where he managed over seventy teclmical employees and was responsible for the
infOlmation management requirements ofthe nationwide recruiting force. Mr. Young
holds a B.S. degree in Engineering from the U.S. Naval Academy and holds a Master of

. Science degree in Information Technologyfrom the Naval Postgraduate School.



Thomas M. Brandt, Jl;

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer oITCS and NextGen
Communications, Inc.

As ChiefFinancial Officer, Mr. Brandt is responsible for the Company's financial
management, reporting, controls, accounting, and adminish'ation. Mr. Brandt joined TCS
in early 1997. He has twenty-seven years experience in finance and accounting. :Mr.
Brandt was previously Senior Vice President and CPO ofDIGEX, Inc., an Intemet
service provider, where he helped lead its 1996 IPO. His experience includes twelve
years with Price Waterhouse, and services as CPO or controller of other corporations
including Easco Corporation, a Fortune 500 company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange. He serves on the Boards ofAntenna Research Associates, Inc., a private
technology company. He is a CPA with an AB from Duke University and an MBA from
the Wharton School ofthe University ofPennsylvania.

Richard H. Dickinson
Senior Director, Public Safety oITCS

Richard (Dick) Dickinson has over eighteen years experience in wireless
telecommunications, project management, and communications center management. He
has built wireless networks nationally and intemationally, managing site acquisition and
zoning, construction, and warehouse logistics. Dick has managed the communications
center for the University ofWashingion, a 24X7 emergency response center. He has
participated in all aspects ofwireless Phase I and Phase II E9-l:-1 deployments, usually in
a lead role for most FOAs and trail blazing deployments for vmlous technologies. With
the emergence ofVoIP, Dick applied his knowledge ofE9-l-1 to develop and patent the
E9-l-1 solution for nomadic VoIP which has become the basis for the NENA i2 standard.
He is active in various industry forums and standards bodies, including NENA, APCO,
NRIC7, ESlF, and is Chair ofthe E9-1-1Institute VoIP Subconnnittee for Policy. Dick
received his Masters Degree ill Intemational Studies from Pacific Lutheran University
and his Bachelors Degree from the United States Military Academy.



Exhibit C



TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS INC !FA! (TSYS
)

275 WEST ST
ANNAPOLIS, MD, 21401
410-263-7616
www.telecomsys.com

10-Q
Quarterly report pursuant to sections 13 or 15(d)
Filed on 8/5/2010
Filed Period 6/30/2010

THOMSON REUTERS



SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarter ended June 30, 2010

OR
TRANSACTION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

Commission File No. 0-30821

TELECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS, INC.
{Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter}

MARYLAND
(State or Other Jurisdiction of
Incorporation or Organization)

275 West Street, Annapolis, MD
(Address of principal executive offices)

52-1526369
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

21401
(Zip Code)

(410) 263-7616

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports)
and (2) has been sUbject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days: Yes 0 No 0

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, If any, every
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes 0 No 0

Indicate by check mark If disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will
not be contained, to the best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in
Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. 0 .

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant Is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a
smaller reporting company. See the definitions of ~Iarge accelerated filer," "accelerated filer" and "smaller reporting company" in Rule
12b-2 of Ihe Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer 0 Accelerated filer
o

Non-accelerated filer 0 Smaller reporting company
o

(Do not check If a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined In Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act): Yes 0 No 0

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.

Title
of

Each
Class

Class A Common Stock, par value
$0.01 per share

Class 8 Common Stock, par value
$0.01 per share

Total Common Stock Outstanding

Shares outstanding
as of July 31.

2010

46,956,905

6,116,334

53,073,239



INDEX

TelECOMMUNICATION SYSTEMS, INC.

PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item
1. Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Income for the three- and six-months ended June 30
2010 and 2009 (Unaudited)

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30 2010 (Unaudited) and December 31.
2009 2

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Eguily for the six-months ended
June 30 2010 (Unaudited) 3

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the six-months ended .June 30 2010
and 2009 (Unaudited) 4

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited) 5
1.ill..m Management's Discussion and AnalYsis of Fjnancial Condition and Results of
.2.. Operations 22
lli!!!l.a.. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 36
lli!!!l
.i.. Controls and Procedures 36

PART II. OTHER INFORMAT!ON
Item
L Legal Proceedings 37
Item
1A. Risk Factors 37
Item
.2.. Unregistered Sales of EQlljtv SeCilrjtjes and IJse of Proceeds 38
lli!!!l
~ Defaults Upon Senior Securities 38
Item
~ Removed and Reserved 38
lli!!!l
Q... Other Information 38
lli!!!l
~ Exhibits 38

SIGNATURES 39



TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Income
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited)

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 3D.

2010 2009 2010 2009

Revenue
Services $ 63,429 $ 34,594 $ 123,273 $ 65,210
Systems 29,233 32,542 60,306 72,419

Total revenue 92,662 67,136 183,579 137,637
Direct costs of revenue

Direct cost of services revenue 35,886 18,820 70,218 37,109
Direct cost of systems revenue, including amortization of

software development cosls 01$2,301,$762, $4,607
and $1,322, respectively 23,588 10,266 46,624 45,154

Total direct cost of revenue 59,474 37,086 116,842 82,343
Services gross profit 27,543 15,774 53,055 20,029
Systems gross profit 5,645 14,276 13,682 27,265

Total gross profit 33,188 30,050 66,737 55,294
Operating costs andexpellses

Research and development expense 6,571 4,915 15,089 9,789
Sales and marketing expense 5,967 4,172 11,946 8,163
General and administrative expense 9,802 8,398 18,264 15,290
Depreclationandamortizalion of property andequipment 2,257 1,434 4,233 2,088
Amortization of acquired intangible assets 1,171 122 2,343 159

Total operating costs and expenses 25,768 19,041 51,875 36,289

Income from operations 7,420 11,009 14,862 19,005
Interest expense (2,237l (

225l (4,589l (413lAmortization of debt discount and debt issuance expenses (216 (53 (376 (58
Other Income, net 495 105 985 284

Income before Income taxes 5,462 10,836 10,882 18,818
Provision for income taxes (2,367) (4,230) (2,777) (7,345)

Net Income $ 3,095 $ 6,606 $ 8,105 $ 11,473

Net Income per share-basic $ 0.06 $ 0.14 $ 0.15 $ 0.25

Net income per share-diluted $ 0.06 $ 0.13 $ 0.14 $ 0.22

Weighted average shares outstanding-basic 52,920 46,765 52,788 46,170

Weighted average shares oiJtstanding"';' diluted 56,124 51,968 66,897 51,557

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(amounts In thousands, except share data)

June 3D,
2010

(unaUdited)

December 31,
2009

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash eqUivalents $
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $427 In 2010 and $389 In 2009
Unbilled receivables
Inventory
Deferred Income taxes
Receivable from settlement ofpatent matter
Income tax refund receivable
Other current assets

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of

$51,179 in 2010 and $46,960 In 2009
Software development costs, net of accumulated amortization of $14,548 in 2010

and $9,941 In 2009
Acquired intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization of $3,868 in 2010 and

$1 ,526 In 2009
Goodwlii
Other assets

assets

97,035
51,156
25,923

3,724
10,228

7,005

195,071

33,283

40,613

30,585
166,948

7,711

474,211

$

$

61,426
65,476
23,783

9,331
9,507

15,700
5,438
8,945

199,606

20,734

45,384

33,975
164,350

8,176

472,225

LiabilitieS and stockholders' equity
Current liabilities:

Ac(;ounts payable and accrued expens~s
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Deferred revenue
Current portion of capital lease obligatlons and notes payable

Total current liabilities
Capital lease obligations and notes payable, less current portion

Deferred income taxes
Other long-term liability

Stockholders' equity:
Class A Common Stock; $0.01 par value:
Authorized shares - 225,000,000; issued and outstandIng shares of

46,924,565 in 2010 and 46,157,025 in 2009
Class B Common Stock; $0.01 par value:
Authorized shares - 75,000,000; issued and outstanding shares of 6,116,334

in 20.10 and 6,276,334 in 2009
Additional pald-tn capital
AccUmulated atherCQmprehensive.income
Accumulated deficit

Total stockhotders' equity

Totaillabllitles and stockholders' equity

$ 39,768 $ 52,999
12,433 19,265
18,860 9,938
45,945 39,731

117,006 121,933
137,591 143,316

13,635 15,435
4,297 5,755

470 462

61 63
291,517 283,733

13 12
(90,379) (98,484)

201,682 185,786

$ 474,211 $ 472,225

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Stockholders' Equity
(amounts In thousands, except share data)

(unaudited)

Accumulated
Class A Class B Additional Other

Common Common Paid-In Comprehensive Accumulated
Stock Stock Capital Income Deficit Total

BalancE)Jit.Jallu~ry ..1j

$ 185,7862010
Options exercised for the

purchase of
512,799 shares of
Class A Common Stock 5 1,784 1,789

Issuance of95,823 shares
of ClassA common
Stock under Employee

1Stock Purchase Plan 612
Conversion of

160,000 shares of
Class B Common Stock
to Class A Common
Stock 2 (2)

Issuance of shares of
15,107 Restrtcted
Class A Common Stock 17 17

Stock-based
compensation expense 5,371 5,371

for€lign currend'{;
translation a· justrnel1t 1

Net income for the
six-months ended
June 30, 2010 8,105 8,105

Balance at June 3D, 2010 $ 470 $ 61 $ 291,517 $ 13 $ (90,379) $ 201,862

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(amounts in thousands)

(unaudited)

Operating activities:
Net Income
Adjustments to reconcile net Income to net cash provided by/{used In) operating activities:

Oepreclationand amortization of property and equipment
Amortization of acquired intangible assets
Deferred tax.provlslon
Stock compensation expense
Amortization of software development costs
Amortization of deferred financing fees
ImpaIrment of marketable securities/investment
Other.non-cash adjustments
Changes. in operating assets. and liabilities:

Accounts receivable, net
Unbilled receivables
Inventory
Other current assets
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Other liabilities
Deferred revenue

Subtotal- Changes in operallng assets and liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities
Investing activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash acqUired
Purchases of property and equipment, net of cash acquired
Capitalized software development costs

Total net cash usedin investing activities
Financing activities:
Proceeds. from lssuanceoflong":"term debt
Payments on long-term debt and capital lease obligations
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options and sale of stock

Total net cash {used in)/provided by financing activities

Net Increase In cash
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Six Months Ended
June 30,

2010 2009

$ 8.105 $ 11,473

4,233 2,888
2,343 159
2,777 6,695
5,371 2,183
4,607 1,322

376 58
225 15
884 (8)

14,280 13,836
(2,084) 2,617
5,607 (9,768l20,947 (732

465 (1,217
(13,377l 19,253ll6,862 5,950

5,146
8,922 7,179

22,752 (3,288)

51,673 21,498

(15,000)
(11,075l l611l(2,172 634

(13,247) (16,245)

20,000
(5,218) (8,466)
2,402 3,250

(2,816) 14,784

35,610 20,037
61,425 38,977

$ 97,035 $ 59,014



TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2010

(amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
(unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentation and Summary ofSignificant Accounting Po/lcles

Basis of Presentation. The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared In
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for interim financial Information and with the instructions to
Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required
by generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements. In the opinion of management, all
adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included.
Operating results for the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2010 are not necessarily indicative of the results that may
be expected for the year ended December 31. 2010. These consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction
with our audited financial statements and related notes included in our 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K. The terms
nTCS", "we", nus" and "our~ as used in this Form 10-0 refer to TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries as a
combined entity, except where it is made clear that such terms mean only TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S, generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts and related
disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss). Comprehensive incomef(loss) includes changes in the equity of a business
during a period from transactions and other events and circumstances (rom non-owner sources. Other comprehensive
incomefloss refers to revenue, expenses, gains and losses that under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles are
included in comprehensive income, but excluded from net income. For operations outside the U.S. that prepare financial
statements In currencies other than the U.S. dollar, results of operations and cash flows are translated at average
exchange rates during the period, and assets and liabilities are translated at end-of-period exchange rates. Translation
adjustments for our European subsidiary are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive Income in
stockholders' equity.

Deferred Compensation Plan. During 2009, the Company adopted a non-qualified deferred compensation
arrangement to fund certain supplemental executive retirement and deferred income plans. Under the terms of the
arrangement, the participants may elect to defer the receipt of a portion of their compensation and each participant directs
the manner In which their Investments are deemed Invested. The funds are held by the Company in a rabbi trust which
include fixed income funds, equity securities, and money market accounts, or other investments for which there Is an active
quoted market. The funds are included In Other assets and Other long-term liability on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
Company contributions were made to the plan in 2009, but not in 2010.

Stock-Based Compensation. We have two stock-based employee compensation plans: our Amended and
Restated Stock Incentive Plan (the UStock Incentive Plan~) and our Second Amended and Restated Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (the UESPP~). In the past, we have issued restricted stock to directors and certain executives. We record
compensation expense for all stock-based compensation plans using the fair value method prescribed by Financial
Accounting Standards Board (the "FASW) Accounting Standards Codification ("ASCU) 718-10. Our stock compensation
expense has been allocated to direct cost of revenue, research and development expense, sales and marketing expense,
and general and administrative expense as detailed In Note 3.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued)

Earnings per share. Basic income per common share is based upon the average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period. Stock options to purchase approximately 7.8 million shares for the three-months ended
June 30, 2010 and 5.9 million shares for the six-months ended June 30, 2010, and approximately 1.8 million shares for
both the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2009 were excluded from the computation of diluted net income per share
because their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive. Shares issuable upon conversion of convertible debt Issued in the
fourth quarter of 2009 were Included In weighted average diluted shares for the six-months ended June 30, 2010 but were
excluded from weighted average diluted shares for the second quarter of 2010 because the effect of their Inclusion would
have been anti-dllutlve. A reconciliation of basic to diluted weighted average common shares outstanding is as follows:

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended

June 30, June 30,
2010 2009 2010 2009

Numerator:
Net income, basic $ 3,095 $ 6,606 $ 8,105 $ 11,473

Adjustment for assumed dilution:
1,457Interest on convertible debt, net of taxes

Net Income, diluted $ 3,095 $ 6,606 $ 9,562 $ 11,473

Denominator:
Total basic weighted-average common shares outstanding 52,920 46,765 52,788 46,170
Effect of dilutivestock Clptions based ()n treasury stock. method 3,204 4,714 4,107 4,894
Effect of dllulive warrants based on treasury stock method 489 493
Effect of dllullve 4.5% convertible debt, based on "if convertedD

method 10,002

Weighted average diluted shares 56,124 51,968 66,897 51,557

Basicearnings.per common share:
$ 0.06 $ 0.15 $ 0.25Net income per share~ basic 0.14

Diluted earnings per common share:
$ $ $ 0.14 $ 0.22Net Income per share-diluted 0.06 0.13

Income Taxes. Income tax amounts and balances are accounted for using the asset and liability method of
accounting for Income taxes as prescribed by ASC 740. Under this method, deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be In effect when the differences are expected to reverse.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company began recognizing the benefits of tax positions in the financial statements
which are more likely than not to be sustained upon examination by the taxing authority and satisfy the appropriate
measurement criteria. If the recognitlon threshold Is met, the tax benefit is generally measured and recognized as the tax
benefit having the highest likellhood, based on our jUdgment, of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the taxing
authority, assuming full knowledge of the position and all relevant facts. At June 30, 2010, we had unrecognized tax
benefits totaling approximately $1.7 million. The determination of these unrecognized amounts requires significant
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued)

jUdgments and interpretation of complex tax laws. Different judgments or interpretatlons could result in material changes to
the amount of unrecognized tax benefits.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements.

In October 2009, the FASB issued Accounting ASU 2009-14 to ASC topic 985, UCertain Revenue Arrangements That
Include Software Elements." that removes tangible products from the scope of software revenue guidance and provides
gUidance on determining whether software deliverables in an arrangement that includes a tangible product are covered by
the scope of the software revenue guidance. ASU 2009-14 will be applied prospectively for new or materially modified
arrangements In fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2010 and early adoption Is permitted. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact the adoption will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In October 2009, the FASB tssued ASU 2009-13 to ASC topic 605 "Revenue Recognition - Multiple Deliverable
Revenue Arrangements." This update addresses how to determine whether an arrangement involving multiple deliverables
contains one or more than one unit of accountlng, and how the arrangement consideration should be allocated among the
separate units of accounting. This update also establlshed a selling price hierarchy for determining the selling price of a
deliverable. The selling price used for each deliverable will be based on vendor-specific objective evidence if available,
third-party evidence if vendor-speclfic evidence Is not available, or estlmated selling price If neither vendor - specified or
third-party evidence is available. ASU 2009-13 may be applied retrospectively or prospectively for new or materially
modified arrangements in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010, with early adoption permitted. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact the adoption will have on its consolidated financial statements.

2. Acqulsltlons

During 2009 the Company acquired four businesses. These acquisitions were accounted for using the acqulsillon
method; accordingly, their total estimated purchase prices are allocated to the net tangible and intangible assets acquired
and liabilities assumed, based on their estimated fair values as of the effective dates of the acquisitions. The allocations of
purchase price were based upon management's preliminary valuation of the fair value of tangible and intangible assets
acquired and liabilities assumed, and such estimates and assumptions are subject to change as the company finalizes the
allocation for each of the acquisitions.

On May 19, 2009, the Company acquired substantially all the assets of LocationLoglc, LLC (ULocationLogic~), formerly
Autodesk, Inc's location services business. The LocatlonLoglc business Is reported as part of our commercial services. The
purchase price of the LocationLoglc's assets was $25 million, comprised of $15 million cash and $10 million, or
approximately 1.4 million shares, in the Company's Class A Common Stock.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued)

The following table summarizes the final purchase price allocation of the fair values of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed at the date of the acquisition:

Assets:
Accounts receivable, net
Unbilled accounts receivable
Other current assets
Property and equipment
Acquired. technology and software deyelopmentcosts
Acquired intangible assets
Goodwill

Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related lIabillties

Totaillabilities

Fair value of net assets acquired

$ 145
1,081

205
865

3,703
8,720

12,206

$ 26,925

$ 1,273
325

$ 1,598

$ 25,327

On November 3, 2009, the Company purchased all of the outstanding stock of Solvern Innovatlons, Inc. ("Solvern"), a
communications technology company focused on cyber-security. The Solvern business is reported as part of our
government services. Solvern's purchase consideration included cash, approXimately 1 million shares of the Company's
Class A common stock, and contingent consideration based on the business's gross profit in 2010 and 2011.

On November 16, 2009, the Company completed the acquisition of sUbstantially all of the assets of Sidereal Solutions,
Inc. ("Sidereal"), a satellite communications technology engineering, operations and maintenance support service
company. The Sidereal business is reported as part of our government services. Consideration for the purchase of the
Sidereal assets Included cash and approXimately 244,200 shares of the Company's Class A common stock, and contingent
consideration based on the business's gross profit in 2010 and 2011.

The total estimated purchase price for the three acquisitJons described above was $70 million. Approximately
$49 million was preliminarily allocated to goodwill, approximately $0.1 million for other current and long-term assets net of
liabilities, and $21 million to acquired definite-lived intangible assets, consisting of the value assigned to customer
relationships of $3.7 million for LocationLogic, $7.3 million for Solvern and $2 million for Sidereal and developed technology
of $8.7 million classified as capitalized software development costs for LocatlonLogic.

We also completed the acquisition of Networks in Motion, Inc. ("NIM") on December 15, 2009. Pursuant to the merger
agreement, TeS issued former NIM shareholders approximately $110 million in cash, $40 million In promissory notes, and
approximately 2.2 million shares of the Company's common stock valued at $20 million. The promissory notes bear simple
interest at 6% and are due in three installments: $30 million on the 12 month anniversary of the closing, $5 million on the
18 month anniversary of the closing, and $5 million on the 24 month anniversary of the closing, subject to escrow
adjustments. Note that for $20 million of the obligation due in December 2010, the Company has the option to settle using
common stock, but the Company currently plans to satisfy this debt for cash.

Of the total estimated NIM purchase price of $170 million, approximately $113.9 mllllon was preliminarily allocated to
goodwill and $54.5 million to acquired definite-lived intangible assets, consisting
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued)

of the value assIgned to NIM's customer relationships of $20.1 million, and developed technology of $34.4 mllllon classified
as capitalized software development costs and approximately $1.6 million for other current and long-term assets net of
liabilities.

During the six-months ending June 30. 2010, we made final adjustments to the prelimInary purchase price allocations
for LocationLoglc, detailed above. We also made adjustments to the preliminary purchase price allocations for the other
three acquisitions for a total adjustment to goodwill of $2.0 million, as a result of information not Initially available. Prior to
the end of the measurement period for finalizing the purchase price allocation, if information becomes available which
would indicate adjustments are required to the purchase price allocation, such adjustments will be included In the purchase
price allocation retrospectively. The measurement period is not to exceed 12 months from the acquisition dates.

The unaudited pro forma financial Information for the three and six-months ended June 30, 2009 In the table below
summarizes the consolidated results of operations for TeS and NIM (which was assessed as a significant and material
acquisition for purposes of unaudited pro forma financial information disclosure). as though NIM was acquired at the
beginning of 2009.

The following pro forma Information is presented to include the effects of the acquisillon of NIM using the acquisition
method of accounting and the related rcs Class A common stock and promissory notes issued as part of consideration.
The unaudited pro forma financial Information is presented to also include the effects of $103.5 million Convertible Notes
offering.

The pro forma financial information is not intended to represent or be indicative of the consolidated results of
operations or financial condition of TCS that would have been reported had the acquisition been completed as of the dates
presented, and should not be construed as representative of the future consolidated results of operations or financial
condition of a consolidated entity.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information is presented below for informational purposes only and Is not
indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved if the acquisitions and any borrowings undertaken to
finance the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of 2009.

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended

Pro
Forma
Information June 30, 2009 June 30, 2009

Revenue $ 86,622 $ 173,366
Net Income $ 8,592 $ 13,612

Basic earnings per share $ 0.18 $ 0.28

Diluted earnings per share $ 0.15 $ 0.25

3. Stock-Based Compensation

We recognize compensation expense net of estimated forfeitures over the requisite service period for grants under our
option plan, which is generally the vesting period of 5 years. The Company estimates the fair value of each stock option
award on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Expected volatilities are based on historical
volat11lty of the Company's stock, The Company estimates forfeitures based on historical experience and the expected. term
of the options granted are derived from historical data on employee exercises. The risk free interest rate Is based on the
U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant. The Company has not paid and does not anticipate paying
dividends in the near future.
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued)

We also recognize non-cash stock compensation expense for restricted stock Issued to directors and certain key
executives. The restrictions expire at the end of one year for directors and expire in annual increments over three years for
executives and are based on continued employment. We had 42 shares and 30 shares of restricted stock outstanding,
respectively, as of June 30, 2010 and June 30, 2009. We expect to record future stock compensation expense of $184 as a
result of the restricted stock grants outstanding as of June 30, 2010 that will be recognized over the remaining vesting
period In 2010 and 2011.

The material components of our stock compensation expense are as follows:

Three Months Six Months
Ended June 30, Ended June 30,

2010 ...lQ.QL 2010 2009

Stock-based compensation:
$ $ $ $Stock options granted atfairvalue 2,110 1,149 5,141 2,074

Restricted·stock 69 40 122 65
Employee stock purchase plan 70 28 108 44

Total stock compensation expense $ 2,249 $ 1,217 $ 5,371 $ 2,183

Stock-based compensation is Included in our operations in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income as
follows:

Three Months Six Months
Ended June 30, Ended June 30,

2010 2009 2010 2009

Stock-based compensation:
Direct cost of revenue $ 1,415 $ 784 $ 3,377 $ 1,406
Research and development expense 567 284 1,402 509
Sales and marketing expense 136 98 326 176
General and admInistrative expense 111 51 266 92

Total stock compensation included in operating expenses $ 2,249 $ 1,217 $ 5,371 $ 2,183

A summary of our stock option activity and related information for the six-months ended June 30, 2010 is as follows:

(Share
amounts
In
thousands)

Oulslandlng, beginning of year
Granted
Exercised
Expired

Forfeited

Outslandlng, at June 30, 2010

Exercisable, al June 30, 2010

Vested and expected to vest at June 3D, 2010

Weighted-average remaining contractual life of options outstanding at June 30,2010

Weighted
Average

Number of Exercise

Options Price

14,612 $ 5.32
1,818 $ 8,31

t 2

j
$ 3.53

131 $ 6.51
658 $ 8.21

15,129 $ 5.60

8,286 $ 4.02

14,037 $ 5.41

6.5 years
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TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.
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Estimated welghted~aveiage grant-date fair value ofopUons granted during the period

Total fair value of options vested during the period

Intrinsic value of options exercised during the period

Six Months
June 30,

2010 2009

$ 4,58 $ 4.65

$ 5,297 $ 3,999

$ 2,258 $ 4,786

Exercise prices for options outstanding at June 30, 2010 ranged from $1.07 to $9.86 as follows (all share amounts in
thousands):

Weighted-Average
Welghted-Averag. Remaining

Weighted-Average Remaining Weighted-Average Contractual Life
Exercise Prices Contractuall1fe Options Exercise Prices of Options

Options of Options otOptlons Vested and of Opllons Vested Vested and
Exercise
Prices Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding (Years) Exercisable and Exercisable Exercisable (years)

$1.07 - $1.84 81 $ 1.70 2.58 81 $ 1.70 2.58
$1.92 - $2.99 2,415 $ 2,47 5.29 2,244 $ 2,47 5.25
$3.05 c $4.68 4,972 $ 3.33 5.54 3,858 $ 3.35 5.01
$4.83 - $7,45 2,229 $ 8.74 4.77 1,692 $ 6.73 3.52
$7.95 - $9.86 5,432 $ 8.66 9.27 411 $ 8.17 8.35

15,129 8,286

As of June 30, 2010, the aggregate Intrinsic value of options outstanding was $8,266 and the aggregate intrinsic value
of options vested and exercisable was $7,016, As of June 30, 2010, we estimate that we will recognize $20,700 In expense
for outstanding, unvested options over their weighted average remaining vesting period of 3,7 years, of which we estimate
$4,800 will be recognized during the remainder of2010,

In using the Black-Scholes model to calculate the fair value of our stock optlons, our assumptions were as follows:

Six Months Ended June 30,
2010 2009

5.5
1.65%-1.9%
63%-64%

0%

5.5
2.4%-2.8%
59%-60%

0%

Expected life (In years)
Risk-free Interest rate(%)
Volatillty(%)
Dividend yield(%)

4. Supplemental DIsclosure of Cash Flow Information

Property and equipment acquired under capltalleases totaled $3,068 and $5,706 during the three- and six-months
ended June 30, 2010, respectively. We acqUired $2,530 and $4,579 of property under capital leases during the three- and
six-months ended June 30, 2009, respectively.

Interest paid totaled $954 and $2,606 during the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2010, respectively. We paid
$225 and $413 in interest for the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2009, respectively.
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Income taxes and estimated state Income taxes paid totaled $942 and $2,172 during the three- and six-months
ended June 30, 2010 and were $500 and $879 for the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2009, respectively.

5. Fair Value Measurements

ASC 820-10 discusses valuation techniques, such as the market approach (comparable market prices), the income
approach (present value of future income or cash flows), and the cost approach (cost to replace the service capacity of an
asset or replacement cost). The statement utilizes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the Inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value into three broad levels. The following is a brief description of those three levels:

Level 1: Observable Inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level2: Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or Indirectly.
These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets and quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or liablllties In markets that are not actlve.

Level3: Observable inputs that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions.

Our population of assets and liabilities SUbject to fair value measurements on a recurring basis and the necessary
disclosures are as follow:

Fair Value Fair Value Measurements at
as of 8/30/2010

6/30/2010 Using Fair Value Hierarchy
Total Level 1 LeveJ2 LeveJ3

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 97,035 $ 97,035 $ $
Deferred compensation plan investments 1,005 1,005

Assets at Fair Value $ 98,040 $ 98,040 $ $

Liabilities
Deferred compensation $ 858 $ 858 $ $
Contractual acquisition eamouts 6,441 6,441

Liabilities at Fair Value $ 7,299 $ 858 $ $ 6,441

The Company holds tradIng securities as part of a rabbi trust to fund certain supplemental executive retirement plans
and deferred income plans. The funds held are all managed by a third party, and include fixed Income funds, equity
securities, and money market accounts, or other investments for which there Is an active quoted market. The related
Deferred compensation liabilities are valued based on the underlying investment selections held in each participant's
account. The Contractual acquisition eamouts were part of the consideration paid for certain 2009 acquisitions and were
initially valued at the acquisition date at $7,753. The fair value of the eamouts Is based on probability-weighted payouts
under different scenarios, discounted using a discount rate commiserate with the risk.
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The following table provides a summary of the changes in the Company's Contractual acquisition earnouts measured
at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable Inputs (Level 3) during the six-months ended June 30,
2010:

Fair Value
Measurements

Using Significant
Unobservable
Inputs (level 3)

Balance at March 31, 2010
Fair value adjustment recognized In earnings

Balance al June 30, 2010

$

$

7,280
(839)

6,441

The Company's long-term debt consists of borrowings under a commercial bank term loan agreement, 4.5%
convertible senior notes, and promissory notes payable to sellers of Networks in Motion, Inc. (see Note 11). The long-term
debt Is currently reported at the borrowed amount outstanding and the fair value of the Company's long-term debt
approximates its carrying amount.

The Company's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis include long-lived
assets, intangible assets, and goodwill. These items are recognized at fair value when they are considered to be other than
temporarily impaired. In the first six-months ending June 30, 2010, there were no required fair value measurements for
assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis.

6. Segment Information

Our two operating segments are the Commercial and Government Segments.

Our Commercial Segment products and services enable wireless carriers to deliver short text messages,
location-based information, Internet content, and other enhanced communication services to and from wireless phones.
Our Commercial Segment also proVides E9-1-1 call routing, mobile location-based applications, and Inter-carrier text
message technology. Customers use our software functionality through connections to and from our network operations
centers, paying us monthly fees based on the number of subscribers, cell sites, call center circuits, or message volume. We
also provide hosted services under contracts with wireless carrier networks, as well as VolP service providers.

Our Government Segment provides communication systems integration, information technology services, and
software solutions to the U.S. Department of Defense and other government customers. We also own and operate secure
satellite teleport facilities, and resell access to satellite airtime ( known as space se~ment.) We design, furnish, install and
operate wireless and data network communication systems, including our SwiftLink deployable communication systems
which integrate high speed, satellite, and internet protocol technology, with secure Government-approved cryptologic
devices.

Management evaluates segment performance based on gross profit. We do not maintaIn Information regarding
segment assets. Accordingly, asset information by reportable segment Is not presented.
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The following table sets forth results for our reportable segments for the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2010
and 2009, respectively. All revenues reported below are from external customers. A reconciliation of segment gross profit to
net ross for the respective periods is also included below:

Three Months Ended June 30.
2010 2009

Comm. Gvmt Total Comm. Gvmt Total

Revenue
Services $ 41,323 $ 22,106 $ 63,429 $ 20,648 $ 13,946 $ 34,594
Systems 6,670 22,563 29,233 12,431 20,111 32,542

Total revenue 47,993 44,669 92,662 33,079 34,057 67,136

Direct costs of revenue
Direct cost of services 20,470 15,416 35,886 8,376 10,444 18,820
Direct cost of systems 3,448 20,140 23,588 2,443 15,823 18,266

Total direct costs 23,918 35,556 59,474 10,819 26,267 37,086

Gross profit
Servlces.gross profit 20,853 6,690 27,543 12,272 3,502 15,774
Systems gross profit 3,222 2,423 5,645 9,988 4,288 14,276

Total gross profit $ 24,075 $ 9,113 $ 33,188 $ 22,260 $ 7,790 $ 30,050

Six Months Ended June 3D.
2010 2009

Comm. Gvrnt Total Comm. Gvmt Total

Revenue
Services $ 80,601 $ 42,672 $ 123,273 $ 38,455 $ 26,763 $ 65,218
Systems 15,315 44,991 60,306 20,194 52,225 74,419

Total revenue 95,916 87,663 183,579 58,649 78,988 137,637

Direct costs of revenue
Direct cost of services 39,734 30,484 70,218 16,567 20,622 37,189
Direct cost of systems 6,889 39,735 46,624 4,331 40,823 45,154

Total dIrect costs 46,623 70,219 116,842 20,898 61,445 82,343

Gross profit
Services gross.profit 40,867 12,188 53,055 21,888 6,141 28,029
Systems gross profit 8,426 5,256 13,682 15,863 11,402 27,265

Total gross profit $ 49,293 $ 17,444 $ 66,737 $ 37,751 $ 17,543 $ 55,294
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Three Months Ended
June 3D.

2010 2009

Total segment gross profit $ 33,188 $ 30,050
Research and development expense (6,571 ) (4,915)
Sales and marketing expense

r
967

t
172

!
General and Cldministn.ltive expense 9,802 8,398
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment 2,257 1,434
Amortization ofacquired intangible assets 1,171 ~122
Interest expense 2,237 225l
Amortization debt discount and debt issuance expenses (216 (53
Other Income, net 495 105

Income before Income taxes 5,462 10,836
Provision for Income taxes (2,367) (4,230)

Net income $ 3,095 $ 6,606

7, Inventory

Inventory consisted of the following:

Six Months Ended
June 30.

2010 2009

$ 66,737 $ 55,294
(15,089)

1
9

.7

89

1~11 ,946l 8,163

1~:~3jl
(15,290

(2,888
2,343 (159
4,589

(
413

l(376 (58
985 284

10,882 18,818
(2,777) (7,345)

$ 8,105 $ 11,473

Component parts
Finished goods

Totallnventory at period end

15

June 30,
2010

$ 2,074
1,650

$ 3,724

Dec. 31,
2009

$ 5,658
3,673

$ 9,331
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8. Acquired Intangible Assets and Capitalized Software Development Costs

Our acquired intangible assets and capitalized software development costs of our continuing operations consisted of
the following:

June 30, 2010
Gross

Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net

December 31, 2009
Gross

Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net

Acquired intangible assets:
$ $Customer Iistsand.other $ 12,951 $ 2,040 $ 10,911 $ 13,735 1,151 12,584

Customer relationships 20,138 1,473 18,665 20,402 113 20,289
Trademarks and patents 1,364 355 1,009 1,364 262 1,102

Software development costs,
Including acquired technology 55,161 14,548 40,613 55,325 9,941 45,384

Total acquired intangible
assets and software dey.
costs $ 89,614 $ 18,416 $ 71,198 $ 90,826 $ 11,467 $ 79,359

Estimated future amortization expense:
Six Months ending December 31,2010 $ 7,013
Year ending December 31, 2011 $ 13,772
Year ending December 31,2012 $ 13,608
Year ending December 31,2013 $ 13,557
Year ending Oecember 31,2014 $ 11,855
Thereafter $ 11,393

$ 71,198

For the three-month and six-months ended June 30, 2010, we capitalized $1,352 and $2,172, respectively, of
software development costs of continuing operations for certain software projects after the point of technological feasIbility
had been reached but before the products were available for general release. Accordingly, these costs have been
capitalized and are being amortized over their estimated useful lives beginning when the products are available for general
release, The capitalized costs relate to our IDeation-based software. We believe that these capitalized costs will be
recoverable from future gross profits generated by these products, For the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2009 we
capitalized $492 and $636 of software development costs.

Preliminary liJross carrying amounts have been adjusted during the six-months ended June 30, 2010 as a result of
information not imtially available. Prior to the end of the measurement period for the finalized purchase price allocation,
which is 12 months from the acquisition dates, if Information becomes available which would Indicate adjustments are
required to the purchase price these adjustments will be included In the purchase price allocation retrospectively.

We routinely update our estimates of the recoverability of the software products that have been capitalized.
Management uses these estimates as the basis for evaluating the carrying values and remaining useful lives of the
respectlve assets.
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9. Concentrations of Credit Risk and Major Customers

Financial Instruments that potentially subject us to significant concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of accounts
receivable and unbilled receivables. Accounts receivable are generally due within thirty days and no collateral is required.
We maintain allowances for potential credit losses and historically such losses have been within our expectations.

The following tables summarize revenue and accounts receivable concentrations from our significant customers:

Customer Segment

% of Total Revenue For
the Three

Months Ended
June 30.

2010 2009

% of Total
Revenue For

the Six
Months Ended

June 30.

Federal Agencies
Customer A

Government
Commercial

36%
28%

35%
28%

36%
29%

42%
24%

Customer Segment

As of June 30, 2010
Accounts Unbllled

Receivable Receivables

U,S. Government
Customer A

Government
Commercial

27%
30%

49%
34%

10. Lines of Credit

We have maintained a line of credit arrangement with our principal bank since 2003, On December 31, 2009, we
amended our June 2009 Third Amended and Restated Loan Agreement with our princlpal bank, The amended agreement
increased the line of credit to a $35,000 revolving line of credit (the °Llne of Credil,~) from the June 2009 amount of
$30,000. Our 2009 line of credit replaces the Company's 2007 revolving Hne of credit availability of $22,000 with the bank,
The Line of Credit maturity date is June 25, 2012,

The Une of Credit includes three sub-facilities: (i) a letter of credit SUb-facility pursuant to which the bank may issue
letters of credit, (ii) a foreign exchange SUb-facility pursuant to which the Company may purchase foreign currency from the
bank, and (iii) a cash management SUb-facility pursuant to which the bank may provide cash management services (Which
may include, among others, merchant services, direct deposit of payroll, business credit cards and check cashing services)
and in connection therewith make loans and extend credit to the Company, The principal amount outstanding under the
Line of Credit accrues interest at a floating per annum rate equal to the rate which is the greater of 0) 4% per annum, or
(ii) the bank's most recently announced "prime rate," even if it is not the bank's lowest prime rate, The principal amount
outstanding under the Line of Credit is payable either prior to or on the maturity date and interest on the Line of Credit is
payable monthly'_ Our potential borrowings under the Line of Credit are reduced by the amounts of cash management
selVlces sublimlt which totaled $1,525 at June 30, 2010. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, there were no borrowings on the
line of credit and we had approximately $33,500 and $28,000, respectively, of unused borrowing availability under this line,
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11. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

4.5% Convertlble notes dated·November16,2009
6.0% Promissory nole payable to NIM sellers dated December 16, 2009
4.5% Note.payable to commercial banks dated December 31,2009

Total.long-term debt
Less: current portion

Non-current portion of long-term debt

June 30, Dec. 31,
2010 2009

$ 103,500 $ 103,500
40,000 40,000
26,667 30,000

170,167 173,500
(41,667) (36,667)

$ 128,500 $ 136,833

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt at June 30, 2010 are as foHows:

2010 $ 33,333
2011 16,667
2012 6,667
2013 6,667
2014 106,833

Total long-term debt $ 170,167

During 2009, the Company entered into multiple financing agreements to fund corporate initiatives.

On November 10, 2009, the Company sold $103.5 million aggregate principal amount of 4,5% Convertible Senior
Notes (the "Notes~) due 2014. The Notes are not registered and were offered under Rule 144A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended. Concurrent with the issuance of the Notes, we entered into convertible note hedge transactions and
warrant transactions, also detailed below, that are expected to reduce the potential dllutlon associated with the conversion
of the Notes. Holders may convert the Notes at their option on any day prior to the close of business on the second
"scheduled trading day" (as defined in the Indenture) immediately preceding November 1, 2014. The conversion rate will
initially be 96.637 shares of Class A common stock per $1 ,000 principal amount of Notes, equivalent to an Initial conversion
price of approximately $10,35 per share of Class A common stock. The effect of the convertible note hedge and warrant
transactions, described below, is an increase in the effective conversion premium of the Notes to 60% above the
November 10th closing price, to $12.74 per share.

The convertible note hedge transactions cover, SUbject to adjustments, 10,001,303 shares of Class A common stock.
Also, in connection with the sale of the Notes, the Company entered into separate warrant transactions with certain
counterparties (collectively, the "Warrant Dealers~), The Company sold to the Warrant Dealers the warrants to purchase in
the aggregate 10,001,303 shares of Class A common stock, subject to adjustments, at an exercise price of $12,74 per
share of Class A common stock. The Company offered and sold the warrants to the Warrant Dealers in reliance on the
exemption from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,

The convertible note hedge and the warrant transactions are separate transactions, each entered into by the Company
with the CQunterparties, which are not part of the terms of the Notes and will not affect the holders' rights under the Notes.
The cost of the convertible note hedge transactions to the Company was approximately $23.8 million, and has been
accounted for as an equity transaction in accordance with
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ASC 815-40, Contracts in Entity's own Equity. The Company received proceeds of approximately $13 million related to the
sale of the warrants, which has also been classified as equity as the warrants meet the classification criteria under
ABC 815-40-25, in which the warrants and the convertible note hedge transactions require settlements In shares and
provide the Company with the choice of a net cash or common shares settlement. As the convertible note hedge and
warrants are indexed to our common stock, we recognized them In Additional paid-in capital, and will not recognize
subsequent changes in fair value as long as the instruments remain classified as equity.

Interest on the Notes is payable semiannually on November 1 and May 1 of each year, beginning May 1. 2010. The
notes will mature and convert on November 1, 2014, unless previously converted In accordance with their terms. The notes
will be TCS's senior unsecured obligations and will rank equally with all of its present and future senior unsecured debt and
senior to any future subordinated debt. The notes will be structurally subordinate to all present and future debt and other
obligations of TCS's subsidiaries and will be effectively subordinate to all of TCS's present and future secured debt to the
extent of the collateral securing that debt. The notes are not redeemable by TCS prior to the maturity date.

On December 15, 2009, the Company issued $40 million in promissory notes as part of the consideration paid for the
acquisition of NIM, see Note 2 for a description of the terms of these notes.

On December 31, 2009, we refinanced our June 2009 commercial bank term loan agreement with a $40 million five
year term loan (the ~Term Loan~) that replaces the Company's $20 mlllion prior term loan, The company drew $30 million of
the term funds available with a maturity date in June 2014, and the remaining $10 million Is available to draw no later than
September 2010. The principal amount outstanding under the Term Loan accrues interest at a floating per annum rate
equal to the rate which is the greater of (i) 4% per annum, or (Ill 0.5% above the banks prime rate (3.25% at June 30,
2010). The principal amount outstanding under the Term Loan s payable In sixty equal installments of principal of $556
beginning on January 29, 2010 and interest is payable on a monthly basis. Funds from the increase in the amount of the
Term Loan were used primarily to retire the June 2009 term loan. In June 2009, we financed a $20,000, five year term loan
with interest calculated at a floating per annum rate equal to the rate which Is the greater of (I) 4% per annum, or (II) 0.5%
above the banks prime rate, which was repayable in monthly installments of $333 plus interest. The additional funds
provided in our June 2009 agreement were used primarily to retire our June 2007 five year bank term loan and for the
acquisition of substantially of the assets of LocationLogic.

Our bank Loan Agreement contains customary representations and warranties and customary events of default,
Avallabmty under the Line of Credit is SUbject to certain condillons, inclUding the continued accuracy of the Company's
representations and warranties. The Loan Agreement also contains subjective covenants that require (i) no material
impairment in the perfection or priority of the bank's lien in the collateral of the Loan Agreement, (ii) no material adverse
change in the business, operations, or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Borrowers, or (ill) no materlallmpalrment of
the prospect of repayment of any portion of the borrowings under the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement also contains
covenants requiring the Company to maintain a minimum adjusted quick ratio and a fixed charge coverage ratio as well as
other restrictive covenants including, among others, restrictions on the Company's ability to dispose part of its business or
property; to change its business, liquidate or enter into certain extraordinary transactions; to merge, consolidate or acquire
stock or property of another entity; to incur Indebtedness; to encumber Its property; to pay dividends or other distributions or
enter Into material transactions with an affiliate. As of June 30, 2010, we were In compliance with the covenants related to
the Loan Agreement and we belleve that we will contlnue to comply with these covenants in the foreseeable future. If our
performance does not result in compliance with any of these restrictive covenants, we would seek to further modify our
financlng arrangements, but there can be no assurance
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that the bank would not exercise its rights and remedies under the Loan Agreement, including declaring all outstanding
debt due and payable.

12. Capital leases

We lease certain equipment under capjtalleases, Property and equipment acquired under capital leases totaled
$3,068 and $5,706 during the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2010, respectively. We acquired $2,530 and $4,579
of property under capital leases during the three- and six-months ended June 3D, 2009, respectively. Capltalleases are
collateralized by the leased assets. Amortization of leased assets is included in depreciation and amortization expense.

Future minimum payments under capital lease obligations consisted of the following at June 30,2010:

2010
2011
2012
2013

Total minimum lease payments
Less: amounts representing interest

Present value of net minimum lease payments·{induding current portion of $4.278)

$ 5,099
4,784
3,441
1,668

14,992
(1,623)

$ 13,369

13. Income taxes

Our provision for income taxes totaled $2,367 and $2,777 for the three and six-months ended June 30, 2010,
respectively, as compared to $4,230 and $7,345 being recorded for the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2009. The
expense recorded for the six-month period ended June 30. 2010 is comprised of current year tax expense of $4,528
recorded based on pretax Income plus a discrete tax benefit of $1,751 recorded related to Research & Experimentation tax
credits, EXcluding dIscrete Items, the effective tax rate was approximately 43% for the three-months ended June 30, 2010
and approximately 42% for the six-months ended June 30, 2010, The effective tax rate was approximately 39% for both
the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2009.

The significant changes to unrecognized tax benefits during the three- and six-months ended June 30,2010 apply to
the reduction for Research & Experimentation tax credits as a result of the Company completing an in depth analysis dUring
first quarter. We do not anticipate a significant change to the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits within the next
twelve months.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has been notified that some customers will or may seek indemnification under Its contractual
arrangements with those customers for costs assoclated with defending lawsuits alleging infringement of certain patents
through the use of our products and services In combination with the use of products and services of multiple other
vendors. In some cases we have agreed to assume the defense of the case. In others, the Company will continue to
negotiate with these customers In good faith because the Company believes lis technology does not Infringe on the cited
patents and due to specific clauses within the customer contractual arrangements that mayor may not give rise to an
indemnification obligation, The Company cannot currently predict the outcome of these matters and the resolutions could
have a material effect on our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows.
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In November 2001, a shareholder class action lawsuit was filed against us, certain of our current officers and a
director, and several investment banks that were the underwriters of our Initial pUblic offering (the "Underwriters"):
Highstein v. TeleCommunication Systems, Inc" et a!., United States District Court for the Southern District of New York,
Civil Action No, 01-CV-9500. The plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of damages. The lawsuit purports to be a class
action suit filed on behalf of purchasers of our Class A Common Stock during the period August 8, 2000 through
December 6, 2000. The plaintiffs allege that the Underwriters agreed to allocate our Class A Common Stock offered for
sale in our initial public offering to certain purchasers In exchange for excessive and undisclosed commissions and
agreements by those purchasers to make additional purchases of our Class A Common Stock in the aftermarket at
pre-determined prices. The plaintiffs allege that all of the defendants violated Sections 11, 12 and 15 of the Securities Act,
and that the underwriters violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder. The claims
against us of violation of Rule 10b-5 have been dismissed with the plaintiffs having the right to re-plead. On February 15,
2005, the District Court issued an Order preliminarily approving a settlement agreement among class plaintiffs, all issuer
defendants and their insurers, provided that the parties agree to a modification narrowing the scope of the bar order set
forth in the settlement agreement. The parties agreed to a modiflcatlon narrowing the scope of the bar order, and on
August 31,2005, the court issued an order preliminarily approving the settlement. On December 5, 2006, the United States
Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit overturned the District Court's certification of the class of plaintiffs who are pursuing
the claims that would be settled in the settlement against the underwriter defendants. Plaintiffs filed a Petition for Rehearing
and Rehearing En Banc with the Second Circuit on January 5, 2007 in response to the Second Circuit's decision. On
April 6, 2007, the Second Circuit denied plaintiffs' rehearing petition, but clarified that the plaintiffs may seek to certify a
more limited class in the District Court. On June 25, 2007, the District Court signed an Order terminating the settlement. On
November 13, 2007, the issuer defendants in certain designated ~focus cases" filed a motion to dismiss the second
consolidated amended class action complaints that were filed In those cases. On March 26, 2008, the District Court Issued
an Opinion and Order denying, in large part, the motions to dismiss the amended complaints in the ~focus cases." On
April 2, 2009, the plaintiffs filed a motion for preliminary approval of a new proposed settlement between plaintiffs, the
undeflNriter defendants, the Issuer defendants and the insurers for the Issuer defendants. On June 10, 2009, the Court
issued an opinion preliminarily approving the proposed settlement, and scheduling a settlement fairness hearing for
September 10, 2009. On August 25, 2009, the plaintiffs filed a motion for final approval of the proposed settlement,
approval of the plan of distribution of the settlement fund, and certification of the settlement classes. A settlement fairness
hearing was held on September 10, 2009. On October 5, 2009, the Court Issued an opinion granting plaintiffs' motion for
final approval of the settlement, approval of the plan of distribution of the settlement fund, and certification of the settlement
classes. We intend to continue to defend the lawsuit until the matter Is resolved. We have purchased a Directors and
Officers insurance polley which we believe should cover any potentlalliabillty that may result from these laddering class
action claims, but can provide no assurance that any or all of the costs of the litigation will ultimately be covered by the
insurance. No reserve has been created for this matter. More than 300 other companies have been named In nearly
identical lawsuits that have been filed by some of the same law firms that represent the plaintiffs in the lawsuit against us.

Other than the Items discussed immediately above, we are not currently subject to any other material legal
proceedings. However, we may from time to time become a party to various legal proceedings arising In the ordinary
course of our business.
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Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction
with the consolidated financial statements, related notes, and other detailed information included elsewhere in this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010 (this "Form 10-Q"). This Form 10-Q contains certain
fOlWard-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21 E
of the Securilles Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Forward-looking statements are statements other than historical
informatlon or statements of current condition. We generally identify forward-looking statements by the use of terms such
as Qbelieve~, Qintend Q

, Qexpece, Qmay", Qshould Q

, Qplan", Qprojecr, "contemplate~, "anticipate~, or other similar statements.
Examples of forward looking statements in thIs Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q include, but are not limited to statements:
(a) regarding our belief that our technology does not infringe the patents related to customer indemnification requests and
our estimates of the Indemnification requests effects on our results of operations: (b) regardIng our expectations with regard
to the notes hedge transactions; (c) that we believe we have sufficient capital resources to fund our operations for the next
twelve months and that we currently plan to settle the December 2010 debt obligation with cash; (d) as to the sufficiency of
our capital resources to meet our anticipated working capital and capital expenditures for at least the next tw"elve months,
(e) that we expect to realize approximately $201.7 million of backlog in the next twelve months, (f) that we believe that
capitalized software development costs will be recoverable from future gross profits (g) regarding our belief that we were in
compliance with our loan covenants and that we believe that we will continue to comply with these covenants, (h) regarding
our expectations with regard to income tax assumptions and assumptions related to future stock compensation expenses,
(I) regarding our expectations related to allowances for potential credit losses, and (j) indicating our insurance policies
should cover all of the costs of the claims in the IPO laddering class action lawsuit.

These forward-looking statements relate to our plans, objectives and expectations for future operations. We base
these statements on our beliefs as well as assumptions made using Information currently available to us. In light of the risks
and uncertaInties inherent in all such projected operational matters, the inclusion of forward-looking statements in this
report should not be regarded as a representation by us or any other person that our objectives or plans will be achieved or
that any of our operating expectations will be realized. Revenues, results of operations, and other matters are difficult to
forecast and our actual financial results realized could differ materially from the statements made herein, as a result of the
risks and uncertainties described in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. These Include without
limitation risks and uncertalntles relating to our financial results and our ability to (i) continue to rely on our customers and
other third parties to provide additional products and services that create a demand for our products and services,
(ii) conduct our business in foreign countries, (lii) adapt and Integrate new technologIes Into our products, (iv) develop
software without any errors or defects, (v) protect our Intellectual property rights, (vi) Implement our business strategy,
(vii) realize backlog, (viii) compete with small business competitors, (ix) effectively manage our counterparty risks,
(x) achieve continued revenue growth in the foreseeable future in certain of our business lines, (Xl) have sufficient capital
resources to fund the Company's operatlons, and (xii) successfully integrate the assets and personnel obtained In our
acquisitions. These factors should not be considered exhaustive; we undertake no obligation to release publicly the results
of any future revisions we may make to forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof
or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. We caution you not to put undue reliance on these forward-looking
statements.

The information in this "Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
OperatlonsQ discusses our unaudited consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with
GMP for Interim financial Information.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Gondlllen and Results of Operations addresses our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting princlples for
interim financial information. The preparatlon of these financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptlons that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-~olng basis, management evaluates Its
estimates and judgments. Management bases Its estimates and Judgments on historical experience and on various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making
judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readJly apparent from other sources, Actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. We have identified our most critical accounting
policies and estimates to be those related to the following:

- Revenue recognition,
- Acquired intangible assets,
- Impairment of goodwill,
- Stock compensation expense,
- Income taxes,
- Business combinations, and
- legal and other contingencies.

This discussion and analysis should be read In conjunctlon with our consolidated financial statements and related
notes Included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,2009 (the "2009 Form 10-K"/. See
Note 1 to the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements included elsewhere In this Form 10-0 for a list 0 the
standards implemented for the six-months ended June 30, 2010,

Overview

Our business is reported using two business segments: (i) the Commercial Segment, which consists principally of
communication technology for wireless networks, principally based on text messaging and location-based services,
including our E9-1-1 application and other applications for wireless carriers and Voice Over IP service providers, and
(Ii) the Government Segment, which includes the engineering, deployment and field support of information processing and
communication solutions, mainly satellite-based, and related services to government agencies.

2009 Acquisitions

During 2009, our company completed four acquisitions, the details of which are described in the Business Sectlon and
Financial Statement Footnote 2 of our 2009 Form 10-K,

For the Commercial Segment:

On May 19,2009, we acquired substantially all of the assels of LocationLogic LLC ("LocationLogic"), a
provider of infrastructure, applications and services for carriers and entelprises to deploy location-based
services,

On December 15, 2009, we acquired Networks In Motion, Inc., ("NIMH) a provider of wireless navigation
solutions for GPS-enabled mobile phones.

For the Government Segment:

On November 3,2009, we acquired Solvel'll Innovations, Inc., ("Solvern") a provider of comprehensive
communications products and solutions, training, and technology services for cyber security-based
platfonns.
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On November 16, 2009, we acquired substantially all of the assets of Sidereal Solutions, Inc.,
("Sidereal"), a satellite communications technology engineering, operations and maintenance support
services company.

Operating results of each of these acquisitions are reflected In the Company's consolidated financial statements from
the date of acquisition.

This ~Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations~provides
information that our management believes to be necessary to achieve a clear understanding of our financial statements
and results of operations. You should read this ~ltem 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operationsn together with Item 1A "Risk Factors" and "Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operallons" In our 2009 Form 10-K as well as the unaudited Interim consolidated
flnanclal statements and the notes thereto located elsewhere in this Form 10-Q.

Indicators of Our Financial and Operating Performance

Our management monitors and analyzes a number of performance indicators In order to manage our business and
evaluate our financial and operating performance. Those indicators Include:

Revenue and gross profit. We derive revenue from the sales of systems and services including recurring
monthly service and subscriber fees, maintenance fees, software licenses and related service fees for the
design, development, and deployment of software and communication systems, and products and services
derived from the delivery of information processing and communication systems to governmental
agencies.

Gross profit represents revenue minus direct cost a/revenue, including certain non-cash expenses. The
major items comprising our cost of revenue are compensation and benefIts, third-party hardware and
software, amortization of software development costs, non-cash stock-based compensation, and overhead
expenses. The costs of hardware and third-party software are primarily associated with the delivery of
systems, and fluctuate from period to period as a result of the relative volume, mix of projects, level of
service support required and the complexity of customized products and services delivered. Amortization
of software development costs, including acquired technology, is associated with the recognition of
systems revenue from our Commercial Segment.

Operating expenses. Our operating expenses arc primarily compensation and benefits) professional fees)
facility costs, marketing and sales-related expenses, and travel costs as well as certain non-cash expenses
such as non-cash stock compensation expense, depreciation and amortization of property and equipment,
and amortization of acquired intangible assets.

Liquidity and cashjlows. The primary driver of our cash flows is the results of our operations. Other
important sources of our liquidity are our convertible debt agreement, financial institution loan agreement,
lease financings secured for the purchase of equipment and potential borrowings under our credit lines.

Balance sheet. We view cash, working capital) and accounts receivable balances and days revenues
outstanding as important indicators of our financial health.

Results of Operations

The comparabJlity of our operating results In the three- and six-month period ended June 30, 2010 to the three- and
six-month period ended June 30, 2009 is affected by our 2009 acquisilions, three of the four acquisitions occurred In the
fourth quarter of 2009, so there was no Impact on the revenue and costs and expense total in the first six-months of 2009.
Our acquisitions did not result in the entry into a new line of business or product category; they added products and
services with substantially similar features and functionality to our Incumbent business. Where variances in our results of
operations for the first six-
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months of 2010 compared to the first six-months of 2009 were clearly related to the acquisitions, such as revenue and
increases in amortization of intangibles, we describe the effects. Operation of the acqUired businesses has been fully
integrated into our existing operations.

Revenue and Cost of Revenue

The following discussion addresses the revenue, direct cost of revenue, and gross profit for our two business
segments.

Commercial Segment:

Three Months Six Months
Ended June 30, 2010 vs. 2009 Ended June 30, 2010 vs. 2009

f$
In
millions) 2010 2009 ---.1..- ~ 2010 2009 ---.1..- ~
Services revenue $ 41.3 $ 20.7 $ 20.6 100% $ 80.6 $ 38.5 $ 42.1 109%
Systems revenue 6.7 12.4 (5.7) (46)% 15.3 20.2 (4.9) (24)%

pommerclalsegment
48.0revenue 33.1 14.9 45% 95.9 58.7 37.2 63%

Direct cost of services
revenue 20.4 6.4 12.0 143% 39.7 16.6 23.1 139%

Direct cost of systems
revenue 3.5 2.4 1.1 46% 6.9 4.3 2.6 60%

Commercial segment
cost of revenue 23.9 10.8 13.1 121% 46.6 20.9 25.7 123%

Services gross profit 20.9 12.3 8.6 70% 40.9 21.9 19.0 87%
% of revenue 51% 59% 51% 57%

Systems gross profit 3.2 10.0 (6.8) (68)% 8.4 15.9 (7.5) (47)%

% of revenue 48% 81% 55% 79%
Commercial segment gross

profit(1) $ 24.1 $ 22.3 $ 1.8 8% $ 49.3 $ 37.8 $ 11.5 30%

% ofrevenue 50% 67% 51% 64%

1 See discussion of segment reporting In Note 6 to the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements

Commercial Services Revenue, Cost of Revenue, and Gross Profit:

Commercial servlces revenue increased by approximately 100% for both the three- and six-months ended June 30,
2010 versus the comparable periods of 2009.

Services revenue includes hosted wireless Location Based Service (LBS) applications including turn-by-turn
navigation, people-finder, asset tracker and E9-1-1 service for wireless and E9-1-1 for Voice over Internet Protocol
(VoIP) service providers, and hosted wireless LBS infrastructure including Position Determining Entity (POE) service. This
revenue primarily consists of monthly recurring service fees recognized in the month earned. Subscrfber service revenue is
generated by ciient software applications for wireless subscribers, generally on a per-subscriber per month basis. E9-1-1,
POE, VolP and hosted LBS service fees are priced based on units served during the period, such as the number of
customer cell sites, the number of connections to Public Service Answering Points (PSAPs/, or the number of customer
subscribers. Maintenance fees on our systems and software licenses are usually collected n advance and recognized
ratably over the contractual maintenance period. Unrecognized maintenance fees are Included In deferred revenue.
Custom software development, implementation and maintenance services may be provided under time and materials or
fixed-fee contracts.

Commercial services revenue In the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2010 was $20.6 million and $42.1 million
higher, respectively, than the same periods for 2009 from increased subscriber revenue for LBS applications, more service
connection deployments of our E9-1-1 services for cellular and VolP service providers, and an increase in software
maintenance revenue. The NiM and LocationLogic
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acquisitions contributed additional subscriber applications revenue during the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2010.

The direct cost of commercial services revenue consists primarily of compensatlon and benefits, network access, data
feed and circuit costs, and equipment and software maintenance. The direct costs of maintenance revenue consist
primarily of compensatlon and benefits expense. For the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2010, the direct cost of
services revenue was $12.0 million and $23.1 million higher, respectively, than the three- and six-months ended June 30,
2009 primarily due to Increase in labor and other direct costs related to the addition of NIM and LocationLogic businesses.
We also incurred an increase in labor and direct costs related to custom development efforts responding to customer
requests and deployment requirements for E9-1-1 VoIP.

Commercial services gross profit was $20.9 million and $12.3 million for the three-months ended June 30, 2010 and
2009, respectively, based on higher revenue. Commercial services gross profit was $40.9 million for the six-months ended
June 30, 2010 compared to $21.9 million for the same period in 2009. Commercial services gross profit for the three- and
six-months ended June 3D, 2010 was approximately 70% and 87% higher than the three- and six-months ended June 30,
2009, primarily due to the contributions of the LocationLogic and NIM acquisitions. The Inclusion of this subscriber
application revenue in the 2010 mix brought the gross profit as a percentage of revenue from 59% to 51% in the
three-months ended June 30,2010 and from 57% to 51% in the six-months ended June 30, 2010.

Commercial Systems Revenue, Cost ofRevenue, and Gross Profit:

We sell communications systems to wireless carriers Incorporating our licensed software for enhanced services,
including text messaging and locallon-based services. These systems are designed to Incorporate our licensed software.
We design our software to ensure that it is compliant with all applicable standards. Licensing fees for our carrier software
are generally a function of its volume of usage in our customers' networks. As a carrier's subscriber base or usage
increases, the carrier must purchase addltlonal capacity under its license agreement and we receive additional revenue.
We also realize license revenue from patents.

Commercial systems revenue for the three- and six-months ended June 3D, 2010 was 46% and 24%, respectively,
lower than In the comparable periods of 2009, due mainly to lower revenue from high-margin messaging systems, which
was partly offset by increased revenue from location-based infrastructure systems.

The direct cost of our commercial systems consists primarily of compensation and benefits, purchased equipment,
third-party hardware and software, travel expenses, consulting fees as well as the amortlzatlon of both acquired and
capitalized software development costs for all reported periods. During the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2010,
direct costs of systems included $2.3 million and $4.6 million, respectively, of amortization of software development costs,
In the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2009, the composition of the direct cost of our systems was about the same
except for $0.8 million and $1.3 million, respectively, of amortization of software development costs. The increase of 46%
and 60% in the direct costs of systems in the three- and six-months ended June 3D, 2010, respectively, compared to the
same periods in 2009, reflects an increase in labor and direct costs related to custom development efforts responding to
customer requests and deployment requirements for location-based systems.

Our commercial systems gross profit was $3,2 million and $8.4 mUllon in the three- and six-months ended June 30,
2010, respectively, versus $10.0 million and $15.9 in the comparable periods of 2009. Commercial systems gross profit
decreased approximately 68% and 47% for the three- and six-months ended June 30,2010 compared to the same
periods in 2009, down due to less higher-margin license software capacity sales offset partially by higher location systems
revenue.
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Government Segment:

Three Months Six Months
Ended June 30, 2010 vs. 2009 Ended June 30. 2010 vs. 2009

($
In
millions) 2010 2009 -$- ~ 2010 2009 -$- ~

Services revenue $ 22.1 $ 13.9 $ 8.2 59% $ 42.7 $ 26.7 $ 16.0 60%
Systems revenue 22.6 20.1 2.5 12% 45.0 52.2 (7.2) (14)%

Government segment
44.7 34.0 10.7 31% 78.9 8.8 11%revenue

Direct cost of services
revenue 15.4 10.4 5.0 48% 30.5 20.6 9.9 48%

Direct cost of systems
revenue 20.2 15.8 4.4 28% 39.7 40.8 (1.1 ) (3)%

Government segment
cost of revenue 35.6 26.2 9.4 36% 70.2 61.4 8.8 14%

Services gross profit 6.7 3.5 3.2 91% 12.2 6.1 6.1 1000/0:
% ofrevenue 30% 25% 29% 23%

Systems gross profit 2.4 4.3 (1.9) (44)% 5.3 11.4 (6.1 ) (54)%

% ofreVenue 11% 21% 12% 22%
Governrnent segment

9.1 7.8 1.3 17% 17.5 17.5gross profit

% of revenue 20% 23% 20% 22%

1 See discussion of segment reporting in Note 6 to the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements

Government SeNicas Revenue, Cost of Revenue, and Gross Profit:

Government services revenue primarily consists of professional communications engineering and field support,
program management, help desk outsource, network design and management for government agencies, as well as
operatlon of teleport (fixed satellite ground terminal) facilities for data connectlvity via satellite Including resale of satellite
airtime. Systems maintenance fees are usually collected in advance and recogmzed ratably over the contractual
maintenance periods. Government services revenue Increased $8.2 million or 59% and $16.0 million or 60% for the three­
and six-months ended June 30, 2010 compared to the three- and six-months ended June 3D, 2009, respectively, as a
result of revenue contributions from customer relationships associated with the Solvern and Sidereal operatlons added to
our business during the fourth quarter of 2009, as well as new and expanded-scope contracts for professional services,
satellite airtime services using our teleport facilities, and maintenance and field support. Direct cost of government services
revenue consists of compensation, benefits and travel expenses incurred in delivering these services, as well as satellite
space segment purchased for resale. These costs increased as a result of the increased volume of services.

Our gross profit from government services increased to $6.7 milllon and $12.2 in the three- and six-months ended
June 3D, 2010, respectively, up from $3.5 million and $6.1 million in the three- and six-months ended June 30,2009, as a
result of a higher volume of services, Including business arising from the acquisitions of Sidereal and Solvem in November
2009. Government services gross profit was 30% and 25% of revenue for the three-months ended June 30, 2010 and
2009, respectively. Government services gross profit was 29% compared to 23% of revenue for the six-months ended
June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectlvely, reflecting a more favorable mix of contracts.

Government Systems Revenue, Cost of Revenue, and Gross Profit:

We generate government systems revenue from the design, development, assembly and deployment of information
processing and communication systems, primarily deployable satellite-based and line-of-slght communications systems,
and integration of those systems IOto customer networks. These '
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are largely variations on our SwiftLink® products, which are lightweIght, secure, deployable communications systems, sold
mainly to units of the U.S. Department of Defense, and other federal agencies.

Government systems sales were $22.6 million and $45.0 mlllion in the three- and six-months ended June, 30 2010,
compared to $20.1 million and $52.2 for the three- and s~-months ended June 30, 2009. The fluctuations in the periods
reported reflect changes in sales volume of our SwiftUnk and deployable communication systems due to the timing of
government project funding.

The cost of our government systems revenue consists of costs related to purchased system components,
compensation, benefits, travel, and the costs of third-party contractors. These costs have decreased as a direct result of
the decrease In volume. These equipment and third-party costs are variable for our various types of products, and margins
may fluctuate between periods based on pricing and product mixes.

Our government systems gross profit was $2.4 million or 11 % of revenue In the three-months ended June 3D, 2010,
down from $4.3 million or 21% of revenue in the comparable period of 2009, due mainly to an increase of lower margin
equipment pass-through sales. Our government systems gross profit was $5.3 million or 12% of revenue in the six-months
ended June 3D, 2010, down from $11.4 million or 22% of revenue In the six-months ended June 30, 2009, due mainly to
an increase In lower margin equipment pass-through sales and lower sales volume of our SwlftLink® product line.

Revenue Backlog

As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, we had unfilled orders or backlog as follows:

($
In
millions) 2010 2009 $ ~

Commercial Segment $ 261.0 $ 102.4 $ 158.6 155%
Government Segment 82.4 62.8 19.6 31%

Total funded contract backlog $ 343.4 $ 165.2 $ 178.2 108%

Commercial Segment $ 261.0 $ 102.4 $ 158.6 155%
Government Segment 350.5 303.8 46.7 15%

Total backlog of orders and commitments, Including customer
$ $options $ 611,5 406.2 205.3 51%

Expected to be realized within next 12 months $ 201.7 $ 124.2 $ 77.5 62%

Funded contract backlog on June 30, 2010 was $343.4 mUllan, of which the Company expects to recognize
$201,7 million in the next twelve months. Total backlog was $611.5 million at the end of the first half of 2010, Funded
contract backlog represents contracts for which fiscal year funding has been appropriated by our customers (mainly federal
agencies), and for our hosted services is computed by mUltiplying the most recent month's recurring revenue times the
remaining months under existing long-term agreements, which we beHeve is the best available Information for anticipating
revenue under those agreements. Total backlog, as is typically measured by government contractors, Includes orders
covering optional periods of service and/or dellverables for which budgetary funding may not yet have been approved.
Company backlog at any given time may be affected by a number of factors, includIng the avallablllly of funding, contracts
being renewed or new contracts being signed before existing contracts are completed, Some of our backlog could be
canceled for causes such as late delivery, poor performance and other factors. Accordingly, a comparison of backlog from
period to period is not necessarily meaningful and may not be indicative of eventual actual revenue.
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Operating Expenses

Research and development expense:

Three Months
Ended

June 30.

Six Months
Ended

June 30. 2010 vs. 2009

20092010

2010 vs. 2009

20092010

($
In
millions)

Research and development
expense $ 6.6 $ 4.9 $ 1.7 35% $ 15.1 $ 9.8 $ 5.3 54%
% of total revenue 7% 7% 8% 7%

Our research and development expense consists primarily of compensation, benefits, travel costs, and a proportionate
share of facilities and corporate overhead. The costs of developing software products are expensed prior to establishing
technological feasibility. Technological feasibility is established for our software products when a detailed program design is
completed. We incur research and development costs to enhance existing packaged software products as well as to create
new software products, including software hosted in our network operations centers. These costs primarily Include
compensation and benefits as well as costs associated with using thIrd-party laboratory and testing resources. We
expense such costs as they are Incurred, unless technological feasibility has been reached and we believe that the
capitalized costs wllJ be recoverable, in which we capitalize and amortize over the product's expected life.

The expenses we incur relate mainly to software applications which are being marketed to new and existlng customers
on a global basis. Throughout the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, research and development was
primarily focused on wireless location-based subscriber and carrier applications, including navigation, people-locator,
cellular E9-1-1 and Voice over IP E9-1-1, enhancements to our hosted LBS platform for carrier infrastructure, and
enhancements to our text messaging deJiverables.

For the three- and six-months ended June 3D, 2010, we capitalized $1.4 million and $2.2 million, respectively, of
research and development costs for certain software projects In accordance with the above policy versus $0.5 mlllion and
$0.6 for the comparable periods in 2009. These costs will be amortized on a product-by-product basis using the
straight-line method over the product's estimated useful life, not longer than three years. Amortization is also computed
using the ratio that current revenue for the product bears to the total of current and anticipated future revenue for that
product (the revenue curve method). If this revenue curve method results in amortization greater than the amount
computed using the straight-line method, amortization is recorded at that greater amount. We believe that these capitalized
costs will be recoverable from future gross profits generated by these products.

Research and development expenses Increased 35% and 54% for the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2010
versus the comparable period of 2009 primarily as a result of expenditures to improve location based application software
for customers of the acquired NIM and LocatlonLogic businesses.

Sales and marketing expense:

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended

June 30. 2010 vs. 2009 June 30. 2010 vs. 2009

2010 2009 ---L.. ~ 2010 2009 ---L.. ~
$ 6.0 $ 4.2 $ 1.8 43% $ 11.9 $ 8.2 $ 3.7 45%

6% 6% 6% 6%

($
in
millions)

Sales and marketing expense
% of total revenue

Our sales and marketing expenses include fixed and variable compensation and benefits, trade show expenses, travel
costs, advertising and public relations costs as weH as a proportionate share of facility-related costs which are expensed
as incurred. Our marketing efforts also Include speaking engagements and attending and sponsoring Industry conferences.
We sell our software products and services through our direct sales force and through indirect channels. We have also
historically leveraged our relationship with origin.al equipment manufacturers to market our software products to wireless
carrier customers.
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We sell our products and services to agencies and departments of the U.S. Government primarily through direct sales
professionals.

Sales and marketing expenses Increased $1.8 million and $3.7 for the three- and six-months ended June 3D, 2010
versus the comparable periods of 2009 due to increases in sales personnel, public relations fees, and variable
compensation resulting mainly In support of the expansion enhanced by 2009 acquisitions.

General and administrative expense:

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended

June 30, 2010 vs, 2009 June 30, 2010 vs, 2009
($
In
millions) 2010 2009 ---1...- ~ 2010 2009 ---1...- ~
General and administrative

expense $ 9,8 $ 8.4 $1.4 17% $ 18,3 $ 15.3 $ 3.0 20%
% of total revenue 11% 13% 10% 11%

General and administrative expense consists primarily of management, finance, legal, human resources and internal
information systems functions. These costs include compensation, benefits, professional fees, travel, and a proportionate
share of rent, utilities and other facilities costs which are expensed as Incurred.

The $1 A million and $3.0 million increase In General and Administrative expense for the three- and six-months
ended June 30, 2010 compared to the same periods in 2009 was due primarily to the increased costs to support the
operations we acquired during 2009, as well as investments for process control enhancement and legal and professional
costs associated with intellectual property.

Depreciation and amortization ofproperty and equIpment:

Three Months
Ended

June 30.

Six Months
Ended

June 30, 2010 vs. 2009

20092010

2010 vs. 2009

20092010

($
In
millions)

Depreciation and amortization of
property and equipment $ 2,3 $ 1.4 $ 0.9 64% $ 4.2 $ 2.9 $ 1.3 45%

Average gross cost of property
and equipment during the
period $ 78,8 $ 57.5 $ 75.1 $ 56.2

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment represents the period costs associated with our investment
in Information technology and telecommunications equipment, software, furniture and fixtures, and leasehold
improvements. We compute depreciation and amortization using the straight-Hne method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, generally range from 5 years for furniture, fixtures, and leasehold improvements to three to four years for most
other types of assets including computers, software, telephone equipment and vehicles.

In the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2010, our depreciable asset base increased primarily as a result of
additions to property and equipment including purchases of about $16.8 million in the first half of 2010.

Amorlization of acquired intangible assets:

Three Months
Ended

June 30, 2010 vs. 2009

Six Months
Ended

June 30. 2010 vs. 2009
($
In
millions) 2010 2009 -$- % 2010 2009 ---1...- %

Amortization of acquired intangible
$ 1.2 $ 0.1 $ 2.3 $ 0.2 $ 2.1assets $ 1.1 1100% 1050%
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The amortizatlon of acquired non-goodwill intangible assets relates to the 2009 acquisitions of wireless
location-based application and infrastructure technology assets acquired from LocationLoglc, NIM, and the cyber security
assets acquired from Solvern, and the 2004 acquisition of Klvera digital mapping business assets. These assets are being
amortized over their useful lives of between five and nineteen years. The expense recognized in the three- and six-months
ended June 30, 2010 relates to customer lists, customer relationships, courseware, and patents. The expense recognized
in the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2009 relates to the Intangible assets, including customer lists and patents,
associated with the 2004 Kivera acquisition and a proportion of the May 19, 2009 LocationLogic acquisition.

Interest expense:

Three Months Six Months
Ended Ended

June 30, 2010 ys. 2009 June 30. 2010 Ys. 2009
($
In
millions) 2010 2009 -L J- 2010 2009 -L ~
Interest expense incurred on bank

$ $ $ 800% $ $ $and other notes payable 0.9 0.1 0.8 1.9 0.2 1.7 850%
Interest expense Incurred on 4.5%

convertible debt financing 1.2 1.2 100% 2.3 2.3 100%
Interest expense Incurred on capital

100% 0.4 0.2 0.2 100%lease obllgatloris 0.2 0.1 0.1
Amortization of deferred financing

fees 0.2 0.1 0.1 100% 0.4 0.1 0.3 300%

Total Interest and financing expense $ 2.5 $ 0.3 $ 2.2 733% $ 5.0 $ 0.5 $ 4.5 900%

Interest expense Is incurred under bank and other notes payable, convertible debt financing, and capital lease
obligatlons. Financing expense reflects amortization of deferred up-front financlng expenditures at the time of contracting
for financing arrangements, which are being amortized over the term of the note or the life of the facility.

On November 16, 2009, the Company Issued $103.5 million aggregate principal amount of 4.5% Convertible Senior
Notes due 2014. Interest on the Notes is payable semiannually on November 1 and May 1 of each year, beginning May 1,
2010. The Notes will mature on November 1, 2014, unless preViously converted In accordance with their terms. The Notes
are TCS's senior unsecured obligations and will rank equally with all of its present and future senior unsecured debt and
senior to any future subordinated debt. The Notes are structurally subordinate to all present and future debt and other
obligations of TCS's subsidiaries and will be effectively subordinate to all of TCS's present and future secured debt to the
extent of the collateral securing that debt. The Notes are not redeemable by TCS prior to the maturity date.

Interest on the bank term loan is at the bank's prime rate plus 0.5% per annum with a minimum rate of 4%. Interest on
our capital leases Is primarily at stated rates averaging about 7%.We have a commercial bank line of credit that has not
been used for borrowings, and has therefore generated no interest expense, during the periods reported. Interest on our
line of credit borrowing would be at the bank's prime rate which was 3.25% per annum as of June 30, 2010 with a minimum
rate of 4%. In June 2009, we entered Into the Third Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement with our prlnclpal
bank. The June 2009 agreement provided for a $30 million revolving line of credit that replaced the Company's prior
$22 million line of credit and a $20 million five year term loan that replaced the Company's prior $10 million term loan.
Further details about our bank facilities are provided under Liquidity and Capital Resources.

On December 15, 2009,we Issued $40 million in promissory notes as part of the consideration paid for the acquisition
of NIM. The promissory notes bear simple Interest at 6% and are due in three installments: $30 million on the 12 month
anniversary of the closing, $5 million on the 18 month anniversary of the closing, and $5 million on the 24 month
anniversary of the closing, subject to escrow adjustments. The promissory notes are effectively subordinated to TCS's
secured debt and structurally subordinated to any present and future indebtedness and other obligatlons of TCS's
subsidiaries.
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Our capital lease obligations Include interest at various amounts depending on the lease arrangements. Our interest
under capilalleases fluctuates depending on the amount of capital lease obligations in each year.

Overall our interest and financing expense was higher in the three- and six-months ended June 30. 2010 as a result
of the Increase In amounts financed In the fourth quarter of 2009, including the 4.5% convertible debt financing in
November 2009. Interest expense on bank and other notes payable increased in the three- and six-months ended
June 30, 2010 compared to the same periods in 2009 as a result aftha NIM promissory notes and the December 2009
bank term loan. Interest on capital lease financing for the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2010 increased slightly
for the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2009 due to additional funding for purchases of property and equipment.
The higher 2010 amortization expense reflects the proration of fees to refinance our bank term loan and fees associated
with the 4.5% convertible debt financing.

Other income/(expense), net:

Other incomei(expense), net includes interest earned on investment accounts and foreign currency
translation/transactlon gain or loss, which Is dependent on fluctuations in exchange rates. The other components of other
income/(expense), net typically remain comparable beween periods.

Income taxes:

Income tax expense was $2.8 million for the first half of 2010 against pre-tax income of $10.9 million for the first half
of 2010, representing an effective tax rate of approximately 26%. The tax provision for the first half of 2010 was lower than
would be normally expected as a result of a discrete adjustment to reduce the reserve against our deferred tax asset by
about $1.8 million. Absent this adjustment, our effective tax rate for the first half of 2010 would have been approximately
42%. For the first six-months of 2009, we recorded a tax provision of $7.3 million, representing an effective tax rate of
abouI39%.

Net income:

($
in
millions)

Three Months
Ended

June 30. 2010 Ys. 2009

%

Six Months
Ended

June 30.

2009

2010 Ys. 2009

%

Netlncome $ 3.1 $ 6.6 $ (3.5) (53)% $ 8.1 $ 11,5 $ (3.4) (30)%

Net income decreased for the three- and six-months ended June 30, 2010 versus the comparable periods of 2009.
The Company's higher revenue and gross profit were offset by an increase in interest expense as a result of our fourth
quarter 2009 financing and an increase in operating expenses and depreciation and amortization expenses, primarily as a
result of our 2009 acquisitions, and other factors discussed above.
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liquidity and Capital Resources

Six Months
Ended

June 30, 2010 vs. 2009
($
In
millions) ....illQ.... 2009 -L ---.!L-
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by/(used In):

$ $ $Income_ 8.1 11.5 (3.4) (30)%
Non"':'cash charges 18.0 6.6 11.4 173%
Deferre<i Income.taxprovision 2.8 6.7 (3.9) (58)%
Net changes in working capital including changes In other assets 22.8 (3.3) 26.1 791%

Operating activities· 51.7 21.5 30.2 140%
Acquisition of LocationLogic assets (15.0l 15.0 100%

Purchases of property and equipment (16.8) (5.2 (11.6) (223)%
Capital purchases funded through leases 5.7 4.6 1.1 24%

Purchases of property and equipment, excluding assets funded by
leasing (11.1l 10.6l (10.5j (175TCapitalized software development costs (2.2 0.6 (1.6

1
267

%Proceeds. from new borrowings - 20.0 (20.0 100 %
Other financing activities (2.8) (5.3) 2.5 47%

Net Increase In cash $ 35.6 $ 20.0 $ 15.6 78%

Days revenue in accounts receivable, including unbilled receivables
at quarter-end 75 92

Capital resources: We have funded our operations, acquisitions, and capital expenditures primarily using cash
generated by our operatlons, as well as the capital leases to fund fixed asset purchases.

Sources a . The Company's cash and cash equivalents balance was approximately $97 million at
June 30, 2010, a 38 million Increase from $59 million at June 30, 2009.

Operations: Cash generated by operating activities was $51.7 million for the first half of 2010 as compared to
$21.5 million for the first half of 2009. The Increased in the first half of 201 0 is primarily due to the receipt of $15.7 million
cash payment for a 2009 patent-related gain, as well as an Increase in deferred revenue due to timing of percentage of
completlon projects, a decrease in accounts payable relating to the timing of vendor payments, and a decrease in accrued
payroll and related Iiabllitles due to the timing of payments.

Investing activities: Fixed asset additions, excluding assets funded by leasing, were approximately $11.1 mlllion and
$0.6 million, for the six-months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Also, investments were made In development
of carrier software for resale which had reached the stage of development calling for capltallzatlon, In the amounts
approximately $2.2 million and $0.6 million for the six-months ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. On May 19,
2009, the company completed the transaction to purchase the LocationLogic business for seller proceeds of $25 million
consisting of $15 million in cash and approximately 1.4 million of Company shares valued at $10 million.

Financing activities: Financing activities dUring the six-months ended June 30, 2010 were limited to scheduled term
debt service payments and capital leasing. Fixed assets acquired under capital leases were valued at $5.7 million and
$4.6 million during the six-months ended June 30. 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Capital Resources: We have a $35 million revolving Line of Credit with our principal bank through June 2012 with
borrowing available at the bank's prime rate which was 3.25% per annum at June 30,2010. Borrowings at any time are
limited to an amount based principally on accounts receivable levels and working capital ratio, each as defined in the Line
of Credit agreement. The Une of Credit available is also reduced by the amount of cash management services subllmlt,
which was $1.5 million June 30, 2010. As
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of June 30, 2010, we had no borrowings outstanding under our bank Line of Credit and had approximately $33.5 million of
unused borrowing availability under the line.

The Une of Credit includes three sub-facilities: (I) a letter of credit sub-facility pursuant to which the bank may issue
letters of credit, (ii) a foreign exchange sUb-faclilty pursuant to which the Company may purchase foreign currency from the
bank, and (iii) a cash management sUb-facility pursuant to which the bank may provide cash management services (which
may include, among others, merchant services, direct deposit of payroll, business credit cards and check cashing services)
and in connection therewith make loans and extend credit to the Company. The principal amount outstanding under the
Line of Credit accrues interest at a floating per annum rate equal to the rate which Is the greater of (i) 4% per annum, or
(II) the bank's most recently announced "prime rate,n even if it is not the Interest Rate. The principal amount outstanding
under the Line of Credit Is payable either prior to or on the maturity date and interest on the Line of Credit is payable
monthly.

On November 16, 2009, the Company Issued 4,5% Convertible Senior Notes to fund corporate initiatives which
Included the acquisition of NIM. Holders may convert the Notes at their option on any day prior to the close of business on
the second ~scheduled trading day" (as defined 'In the Indenture) immediately preceding November 1, 2014. The conversion
rate will Initially be 96.637 shares of our Class A common stock per $1,000 princlpal amount of the Notes, equivalent to an
Initial conversion price of approximately $10.348 per share of Class A common stock. At the time of this transaction, while
this represented an approximately 30% conversion premium over the closing price of the Company's Class A common
stock on November 10, 2009 of $7,96 per share, the effect of the convertible note hedge and warrant transactions,
described below increased the effective conversion premium of the Notes to 60% above the November 10th closing price,
to $12.74 per share.

In connection with the sale of the Notes, the Company entered into convertible note hedge transactions with respect to
the Class A common stock with certain counterparties, The convertible note hedge transactions cover, subject to
adjustments, 10,001,303 shares of Class A common stock. Also, in connection with the sale of the Notes, the Company
entered into separate warrant transactions with certain counterpartles the Warrant Dealers. The Company sold to the
Warrant Dealers, warrants to purchase in the aggregate 10,001,303 shares of Class A common stock, subject to
adjustments, at an exercise price of $12,736 per share of Class A common stock. The Company offered and sold the
warrants to the Warrant Dealers in reliance on the exemption from registration provided by Section 4(2) of the Securities
Act. The Company used a portion of the gross proceeds of the offering to pay the Company's cost of the convertible note
hedge transactions. The convertible note hedge and the warrant transactions are separate transactions; each entered Into
by the Company with the counterparties, is not part of the terms of the Notes and will not affect the holders' rights under the
Notes.

On December 15, 2009, we issued $40 million in promissory notes as part of the consideration paid for the acquisition
of NIM, The promissory notes bear simple interest at 6% and are due in three installments: $30 million on the 12 month
anniversary of the closing, $5 million on the 18 month anniversary of the closing, and $5 million on the 24 month
anniversary of the closing, SUbject to escrow adjustments. The promissory notes are effectively subordinated to TCS's
secured debt and structurally subordinated to any present and future indebtedness and other obligations of TCS's
subsidiaries,

On December 31, 2009, we refinanced facilities under our bank Loan Agreement. A $40 million five-year Term Loan
replaced the Company's $20 million prior term loan with the bank, The Company drew $30 mllllon of the funds available,
The remaining $10 million is available to draw no later than September 2010. The Term Loan maturity date Is June 2014.

Under the Loan Agreement, the Company Is obligated to repay all advances or credit extensions made pursuant to the
Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement is secured by SUbstantially all of the Company's tangible and intangible assets as
collateral, except that the collateral does not Include any of the Company's intellectual property, The principal amount
outstanding under the Term loan accrues Interest at the greater of (i) 4% per annum, or (il) a floating per annum rate equal
to one-half of one percentage point (0,5%) above the Interest Rate (3,25% at June 30, 2010). The principal amount
outstanding under the Term Loan is payable In sixty (60) equal installments of principal beginning on January 29,2010 and
interest is payable on a
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monthly basis ($0.6 million plus interest per month). As of June 3D, 2010, the amount outstanding under the Term Loan
was $27 million. Funds from the Increase In the amount of the Term Loan were used primarily to retire the June 2009 term
loan. In June of 2009, we refinanced the unamortized balance under our June 2007 $10 million five-year note payable loan
with a $20 million five-year note.

The Loan Agreement contains customary representations and warranties and customary events of default. Availability
under the Line of Credit is subject to certain conditions, including the continued accuracy of the Company's representations
and warranties. The Loan Agreement also contains subjective covenants that requires (i) no material Impairment In the
perfection or priority of the bank's lien in the collateral of the Loan Agreement, (ii) no material adverse change in the
business, operations, or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company, or (Ill) no material impairment of the prospect of
repayment of any portion of the borrowings under the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement also contains covenants
requiring the Company to maintain a minimum adjusted quick ralio and a fixed charge coverage ratio as well as other
restrictive covenants including, among others, restrictions on the Company's ability to dispose part of their business or
property; to change their business, liquidate or enter into certain extraordinary transactions; to merge, consolidate or
acquire stock or property of another entity; to incur indebtedness; to encumber their property; to pay dividends or other
distributions or enter Into material transactions with an affiliate of the Company.

As of June 3D, 2010, we were In compliance with the covenants related to the Loan Agreement and we believe that we
will continue to comply with these covenants. If our performance does not result in compliance with any of these restrictive
covenants, we would seek to further modify our financing arrangements, but there can be no assurance that the bank
would not exercise its rights and remedies under the Loan Agreement, including declaring all outstanding debt due and
payable.

We currently believe that we have sufficlent capital resources with cash generated from operations as weH as cash on
hand to meet our anticipated cash operating expenses, working capital, and capital expenditure and debt service needs for
the next twelve months. We have borrowing capaclty available to us In the form of capital leases as well as a line of credit
arrangement with our principal bank which expires In June 2012. We may also consider raising capital in the public markets
as a means to meet our capital needs and to Invest in our business. Although we may need to return to the capital markets,
establish new credit facilities or raise capital In private transactions In order to meet our capital requirements, we can offer
no assurances that we will be able to access these potential sources of funds on terms acceptable to us or at ali.

Contractual Commitments

As of June 3D, 2010, our most significant commitments consisted of purchase obligations, term debt, obligations under
capital leases and non-cancelable operating leases. Other long-term debt consists of contingent consideration included as
part of the purchase price allocation of certain acquisitions. We lease certain furniture and computer equipment under
capital leases. We lease office space and equipment under non-cancelable operating leases. Purchase obligations
represent contracts for parts and services in connection with our government satellite services and systems offerings. As of
June 30, 2010 our commitments consisted of the folloWing:

Within 12 1-3 3-5 More than
($
In
millions) Months Years Years 5 Years Total

Term loan $ 7.7 $ 14.5 $ 6.8 $ $ 29.0
4.5% Convertible debt interest obligation 4.7 9.4 6.9 21.0
Promissory notes payable 37.7 5.3 43.0
Other long-term debt 3.0 3.4 6.4
Capltallease obligations 5.1 8.2 1.7 15.0
Operating leases 4.9 9.1 3.1 1.7 18.8
Purchase obligations 4.7 3.1 7.8

Total contractual commitments $ 67.8 $ 53.0 $ 18.5 $ 1.7 $ 141.0
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Interest Rate Risk

There have not been any material changes to our interest rate risk as described In Item 7A of our 2010 Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

Foreign Currency Risk

For the three- and six months ended June 30, 2010, we generated $3.2 million and $6,3 million, respectively, of
revenue outside the U.S, mostly denominated in U.S. dollars. A change in exchange rates would not have a material Impact
on our Consolidated Financial Statements. As of June 30, 2010, we had approximately $1.6 million of billed accounts
receivable that are denominated in foreign currencies and would be exposed to foreign currency exchange risk. During the
six-months ended June 30, 2010, our average receivables subject to foreign currency exchange risk was $1.4 million and
our average deferred revenue balances sUbject to foreign currency exchange risk was $0.9 million. We had an average
balance of $0.2 million of unbilled receivables denominated in foreign currency during the six-months ended June 30,
2010. We recorded immaterial transaction gains or losses on foreign currency denominated receivables and deferred
revenue for the six-months ended June 30, 2010.

There have not been any other material changes to our foreign currency risk as described in Item 7A of our 2009
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to
be disclosed in the Company's reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded,
processed, and summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the Securities and
Exchange Commission, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company's management,
including Its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls
and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the
desired control objectives, and management necessarily was required to apply its jUdgment in evaluating the cost-benefit
relationship of possible controls and procedures.

As required by Rule 13a-15(b}, the Company carried out an evaluallon, under the supervision and with the
participation of the Company's management, Including the Company's Chief Executive Officer and the Company's Chief
Financlal Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures as
of the end of the quarter covered by this report. Based on the foregoing, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures were effective at a reasonable
assurance level as of June 30, 2010.

There have been no changes In the Company's internal control over financlal reporting during the latest fiscal quarter
that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's Internal control over financial
reporting.
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PART II. - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

In November 2001, a shareholder class action lawsuit was filed against us, certain of our current officers and a
director, and several Investment banks that were the underwriters of our Initial public offering (the gUnderwriters"):
Hlghstein v. TeleCommunication Systems, Inc., at al., United States DIstrict Court for the Southern District of New York,
Civil Action No. 01-CV-9500. The plaintiffs seek an unspecified amount of damages. The lawsuit purports to be a class
action suit filed on behalf of purchasers of our Class A Common Stock during the period August 8, 2000 through
December 6, 2000. The plaintiffs allege that the Underwriters agreed to allocate our Class A Common Stock offered for
sale in our initial public offering to certain purchasers In exchange for excessive and undisclosed commissions and
agreements by those purchasers to make additional purchases of our Class A Common Stock in the aftermarket at
pre-determined prices. The plaintiffs allege that all of the defendants violated Sections 11, 12 and 15 of the Securitles Act,
and that the underwriters violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, and Rule 1Ob-5 promulgated thereunder. The claims
against us of violation of Rule 10b-5 have been dismissed with the plaintiffs having the right to re-plead. On February 15,
2005, the District Court Issued an Order preliminarily approving a settlement agreement among class plaintiffs, all issuer
defendants and their insurers, provided that the parties agree to a modification narrowing the scope of the bar order set
forth in the settlement agreement. The parties agreed to a modification narrowing the scope of the bar order, and on
August 31, 2005, the court issued an order preliminarily approving the settlement. On December 5, 2006, the United States
Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit overturned the District Court's certification of the class of plaintiffs who are pursuing
the claims that would be settled in the settlement against the underwriter defendants. Plaintiffs filed a Petition for Rehearing
and Rehearing En Bane with the Second Circuit on January 5, 2007 in response to the Second Circuit's decision. On
April 6, 2007,the Second Circuit denied plaintiffs' rehearing petition, but clarified that the plaintiffs may seek to certify a
more limited class in the District Court. On June 25, 2007, the District Court signed an Order terminating the settlement. On
November 13, 2007, the issuer defendants in certain designated ~focus cases" filed a motion to dismiss the second
consolidated amended class action complaints that were filed in those cases. On March 26, 2008, the DIstrict Court issued
an Opinion and Order denying, in large part, the motions to dismiss the amended complaints in the Hfocus cases." On
April 2, 2009, the plaintiffs filed a motion for preliminary approval of a new proposed settlement between plaintiffs, the
underwriter defendants, the issuer defendants and the Insurers for the Issuer defendants. On June 10, 2009, the Court
Issued an opinion preliminarily approving the proposed settlement, and scheduling a settlement fairness hearing for
September 10,2009. On August 25, 2009, the plaintiffs filed a motion for final approval of the proposed settlement,
approval of the plan of distribution of the settlement fund, and certification of the settlement classes. A settlement fairness
hearing was held on September 10, 2009. On October 5, 2009, the Court issued an opinion granting plaintiffs' motlon for
final approval of the settlement, approval of the plan of distribution of the settlement fund, and certification of the settlement
classes. We Intend to continue to defend the lawsuit until the matter is resolved. We have purchased a Directors and
Officers insurance policy which we believe should cover any potential liability that may result from these laddering class
action claims, but can provide no assurance that any or all of the costs of the litigation will ultimately be covered by the
insurance. No reserve has been created for this matter. More than 300 other companies have been named in nearly
identical lawsuits that have been filed by some of the same Jaw firms that represent the plaintiffs in the lawsuit against us.

Other than the items discussed immediately above, we are not currently SUbject to any other material legal
proceedings. However, we may from tIme to time become a party to various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary
course of our business.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

There have not been any material changes to the Information previously disclosed in ~ltem 1A. Risk Factors~ in our
2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales ofEquity Securities and Use ofProceeds

None.

Item 3. Defaults Upon SenIor Securities

None.

Item 4. Removed and Reserved

Item 5. Other Information

(a) None

(b) None.

Item 6. Exlllbits

Exhibit
Numbers Description

31.1
31.2
32.1

32.2

Certification of CEO required by the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 13a-14(a! or 15d-14(a)
Certification of CFO required by the Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 13a-14(a or 15d-14(a)
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act 012002
Certificatlon pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act 012002
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the
Registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on the
5th day of August 2010.

TELECOMMUNICATiON SYSTEMS, INC.

By: lsi Maurice B. Tos"
Maurice B. Tose
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities and on the dates Indicated.

Isf Maurice B. Tose

Maurice B. Tose
August5,2010

lsI Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.

Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
August5,2010

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Senior Vice President and Chief Financlal Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Maurice B. Toss, certify that:

a) I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 1O-Q of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.;

b) Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, In light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

c) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information Included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented In this report;

d) The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined In Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e» and Internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the regislrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material Information relating to the registrant, including Its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

b) designed such Internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented In this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed In this report any change In the registrant's Internal control over financial reporting that occurred
dUring the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect
the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

e) The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of Internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
In the registrant's internal controls over financial reporting.

lsi Maurice B. Tose
Maurice B. Tose
Chairman, CEO and President



Exhibit 31.2
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CERTIFiCATIONS

i, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr, certify that:

a) I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-0 of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.;

b) Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made. not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

c) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented In this report;

d) The registrant's other certifying officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined In Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e» and Internal control over financial reporting
(as defined in Exchange Act Ruies 13a-15(Q and 15d-15(!)) for the registrant and have:

a} designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material Information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, Is made known to us by others within those entitles, particularly during the period In which this report is
being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliablllty of financial reporting
and the preparatlon of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effecllveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect
the registrant's internal control over financ1al reporting; and

e) The registrant's other certifying officer{s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all sl~nificant deficiencies and material weaknesses In the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting whIch are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial Information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant's Internal controls over financial reporting.

lsI Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Sr. Vice President & CFO



Exhibit 32.1

15/ Maurice B, Tosa
Maurice B. Tosa
Date: August 5, 2010

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be
retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2
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Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350

(Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

I, Thomas M. Brandt, Jr., ChIef Financial Officer (principal financial officer) of TeleCommunication Systems, Inc. (the
"Registran!"), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) The Quarterly Report on Form 1O-Q of the Company for the period ended June 30, 2010Jthe "Report") fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 18m); an

(2) The information contained In the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations oftha Company.

151 Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Thomas M. Brandt, Jr.
Date: August 5, 2010

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be
retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange CommissIon or its staff upon request.
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This tariff, filed with the Missouri Public Service Commission contains the descriptions, regulations,
and rates applicable to the furnishing ofE9-1-1 services by NextGen Communications, Inc.
(NextGen). NextGen is providing service to non-residential/commercial customers.
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WAIVERS

NextGen is classified as a competitive telecommunications company. Application ofthe
following statutes and regulatOlY mles shall bewaived:

392.210.2
392.240.1
392.270
392.280
392.290
392.300.2
392.310
392.320
392.330
392.340

StatutOly Provisions
Uniform System of Accounts
Just & Reasonable Rates
Ascel1ain Propelty Values
Depreciation Accounts
Issuance of Securities
Acquisition of Stock
Issuance of stock and debt
Stock dividend payment
Issuance of securities, debts & notes
Reorganizations

Commission Rules
4 CSR 240-10.020 Depreciation fund income
4 CSR 240-30.040 Uniform system of accounts
4 CSR 240-3.550(5)(C) File exchange boundary maps with Commission

CONTACT INFORMATION

Kim Robe11 Scovill
Senior Director - Legal and Regulatory
TeleCommunication Systems, Inc.
275 West Street - 4th Floor
Annapolis, MD 21401
Tel: 410-349-7097
Fax: 410-295-1884
kscovill@telecomsys.com

Richard H. Dickinson
Senior Director, Public Safety
2401 Elliott Avenue, 2"d Floor
Seattle, WA 98121
Tel: 206-792-2224
Fax: 206-792-2001
ddickinson@telecomsys.com

NextGen provides a 24 hoUl', 7 days a week, 365 days a year accessible toll free service
number, (800) 959-3749.
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NextGcn Communications, Inc. (NcxtGen)

TARIFF FORMAT AND EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS

TariffNo. I
Original- Page 4

Page Numbering: Page numbers appear in the upper right hand corner of the page. Pages are
numbered sequentially. From time to time new pages may be added to the Tariff. When a new page
is added between existing pages a decimal is added to the preceding page numbel'. For example, a
new page added between Pages 3 and 4 would be numbered 3.1.

Explanation of Symbols: When changes are made in any Tariffpage, a revised page will be issued
replacing the affected Tariffpagc. Changes will be identified on the revised page(s) in the right hand
margin on each line changed through the use of the following symbols:

(C) To signify changed regulation

(D) To signify discontinued material

(I) To signify rate or charge increase

(M) To signify material relocated without change in text or rate

(N) To signify new material

(0) To signify material relocated without change in text but with an increase in rate

(D) To signify a decreased rate

(S) To signify reissued material

(T) To signify a change in text but no change in rate or regulation

(Z) To signify a correction

APPLICATION OF TARIFF

This tariff sets forth the service offerings, rates, terms, and conditions applicable to the furnishing of
intrastate telecommunications services by NextGen Communications, Inc., hereinafter referred to as
the Company, to customers within the State ofMissouri.
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NextGen Communications, Inc. (NextGen)

SECTION 1. - DEFINITIONS

Automatic Location Identification (ALI) Database

Tariff No. 1
Original- Page 5

See Location Database. Traditionally, the ALI Database maintained the name and address
associated with the calling party's telephone number (identified by ANI Feature). In the future,
ALI data may ouly be a pOltion of the location data available in the Locatiou database.

Automatic Location Identification (ALI) to Automatic Location Identification (ALI) data transfer

A feature by which Automatic Location Identification (ALI) data is transferred to another
provider's Automatic Location Identification (ALI) system.

Automatic Location Identification (ALl) PSAP port

A pOlt on the ALI database system used to deliver Automatic Number Identification (ANI) to
the PSAP.

Automatic Number Identification (ANI)

A feature by which the calling party's ANI telephone number is forwarded to the E9-1-1
Control Office aud to the PSAPs Display and Transfer Units.

Business Customer

A Customer who subscribes to the Company's Service(s) and whose primary use of the Service is of a
business, professional, institutional, or otherwise occupational nature.

Call Routing Device
An intelligent network device that, based on the identified number of the calling party (and
potentially other factors), routes an E9-1-1 call from a central office to the designated primary
PSAP. (See "Selective Routing")

Company

Used throughout this tariff to refer to NextGen Communications, Inc., a Maryland corporation, unless
otherwise clearly indicated by the context.

Customer

A current or potential buyer or user of the services identified in this tariff. This is typically through
purchasing the services; however, the term also includes by extension anyone who uses or experiences
the services of another.

Issued:
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NextGen Communications, Inc. (NextGen)

SECTION 1. - DEFINITIONS, CONTINUED

Database Management System (DBMS)

See Location Validation Function

Default Routing (DR)

Tariff No. I
Original- Page 6

A feature activated when an incoming E9-1-1 call cannot be selectively routed due to an ANI
failure, garbled digits, or other causes. Such incoming calls are routed from the E9-1-1 Control
Office to a default PSAP. Each incoming E9-1-1 facility group to the E9-1-1 Control Office is
assigned to a designated default PSAP. This is a standard feature of E9-1-1 Service.

Display and Transfer Unit

A console and associated common equipment for displaying ANI numbers at the PSAP attendant
position and used by the attendant to activate Fixed and/or Selective Transfer functions.

E9-1-1 Call or E9-1-1 Service

A teleeommunications service that uses ANI, ALI (including non-listed and non-published numbers
and addresses), Selective Routing, and the three-digit number "9-1-1," for a caller wishing to report
police, fire, medical, or other emergency situations (as examples) to a PSAP for referral to a public
safety agency. As used in this tariff, E9-I-l does not include discretionary equipment purchased, or
contracted for that is not essential to the provision of E9-1-1 service.

Emergency Service Number (ESN)

Unique numbers provided by the Company to be associated by the customer with street address
ranges or other mutually agreed upon routing criteria for selective routing of calls to unique
combinations of police, fire, ambulance and any other appropriate agencies responsible for
providing emergency service in the E9-1-1 serving area.

End Office

The central office(s) which receive originating E9-1-1 calls.

Enhanced 9-1-1 (E9-1-1) Service Area

The geographic area in which the E9-I-l authority will respond to all E9-1-1 calls and dispatch
appropriate emergency assistance.

Issued:
Issued by: Brnce A. White, Secretary
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NextGen Communications, Inc. (NextGen)

SECTION 1. - DEFINITIONS, CONTINUED

Enhanced 9-1-1 (E9-1- j) Transport

Tariff No. 1
Original- Page 7

Telephone lines or facilities that are dedicated to an E9-1-1 system. Enhanced 9-1-1 transport
lines for PSALI connect a customer's PBX to the E9-1-1 Control Office.

Individual Contract Basis nCB)

A service arrangement where the regulations, rates, and charges are developed based on the specific
circumstances of the Customer's situation and set out in a separate agreement with the Customer. An
lCB may incorporate this or other applicable tariffs by reference.

Internet Protocol (IP)

The Internet Protocol (IP) is a method used for communicating data across a packet-switched digital
network. Sometimes also referred to as TCP/IP.

Location Database

An ALI, Location Information Server, or other database that stores location information for
emergency services use.

Location Database Call Routing Device POlt

A port on the Location database system used to deliver 9-1-1 calling information to the Call
Routing Device.

Issued:
Issued by: Brnce A. White, Secretmy
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NextGen Communications, Inc. (NextGen)

SECTION 1. - DEFINITIONS, CONTINUED

Location Validation Function

Tariff No. I
Original- Page 8

Device and Location Database featmes and determines whether a location description is valid for the
given area. This function was traditionally provided by a DBMS using the MSAG. For NextGen's
9-1-1, the data somce will not be only the MSAG if an MSAG is used at all. In NextGen's 9-1-1
system, the creation of the valid locations is carried out by the Mastel' Location Validation System A
system that stores and receives updates of the data required to provide the Call Routing.

Manual Transfer

A feature that enables the PSAP attendant to transfer an incoming call by depressing the
switchhook of the associated telephone or a button on the Display and Transfer Unit and dialing
either a 7-digit or IO-digit telephone number or a 2-digit speed calling code. Manual Transfer is
associated with the E9-I-l trunk unit and is a standard feature of E9-1-1 Service.

Mastel' Location Validation System

A system that acts as the master somce for valid locations in a given area. Traditionally, a
DBMS is used to create and maintain an MSAG. In NextGen's 9-1-1 system, the Mastel'
Location Validation System will be a GIS system.

Master Street Address Guide (MSAG)

The document or computer file that lists the standard street names, address ranges, political
community designations, and routing codes (ESNs).

Pseudo Automatic Number Identification

A featme in which a number, assigned to the area served by a wireless communications
provider's towel' or a sector of the area served by a tower, is forwarded to the E9- I -1 Call
Routing Device and to the PSAPs Display and Transfer Units.

Private Switch/Automatic Location Identification Customer

The Private Switch or Location Database customer may be a municipality or other state or local
governmental unit, or an authorized agent of one or more municipalities or other state or local
govel'11mental units to whom authority has been lawfully delegated, or a PBX owner/operator, or
Centrex/CENTRON customer who desires to provide station location information to the E9-I-l
system.
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NextGen Communications, Inc. (NextGen)

SECTION 1. - DEFINITIONS, CONTINUED

Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP)

Tariff No. ]
Original- Page 9

An answering location for 9-]-] calls originating in a given area. A PSAP may be designated as
Primary or Secondmy, which refers to the order in which calls are directed for answering. Primaty
PSAPs respond first; Secondary PSAPs receive calls on a transfer basis only and generally serve as a
centralized answering location for a pmiicular type of emergency call. PSAPs are staffed by
employees of service agencies such as police, fire, 01' emergency medical or by employees of a
common bureau serving a group of such entities.

Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) Trunk

A trunk used to deliver ANY information from a Call Routing Device to a PSAP. The PSAP trunk
may be set to receive a 9-]-] call in several different formats. The trunk could be TOM or IP. The
PSAP trunk is also used to connect and carry voice transmission, and in the case ofIP (VoIP)
possibly the location information, from the Call Routing Device.

Routing Telephone Number (RTN)

A number that when dialed rings to a specific Public Safety Answering Point. This is used for
connectivity from the PSTN to the 9-]-1 network of a Public Safety Answering Point.

Routing Telephone Number POli

A port in the Call Routing Device used to connect the routing telephone number line.

Selective Routing (SR)

A form of call routing that mayor may not be applicable to the Company's E9-]-] that routes an
E9-]-] call from a central office to the designated primary PSAP based upon the identified
number of the calling pmiy (other factors may be used to determine the call routing in addition to
the calling party's number). (See "Call Routing Device")

Selective Transfer

A feature providing persons at the PSAP the ability to transfer an incoming call to another agency by
depressing a single buttonlabe]ed with the type of agency, e.g., "Fire", on the Display and Transfer
Unit. This type of transfer is only available when the SR feature is provided.

Issued:
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NextGen Communications, Inc. (NextGen)

SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS

2.1. Company Liability and Indcmnification

I. Limitations on Company Liability

TariffNo. I
Original- Page 10

The Company's liability for any loss or damage arising from errors, interruptions, defects,
failures, delays, or malfunctions of any service, equipment, or any part thereof provided
pursuant to this Tariff or ICB, whether caused by the negligence of the Company or
otherwise, except gross negligence, shall not exceed the greater of$50.00 or an amount
equivalent to the pro rata charges for the service or equipment affected during the period of
time that the service or equipment was fully or partially inoperative.

2. Release and Indemnification / Intellectual Property

a. The customer agrees to release, indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Company
from any and all loss, claims, demands, suits or other action; or any liability
whatsoever, whether suffered, made, institnted or asserted by the customer or by any
other party or person, for any personal injury to or death of any person or persons, or
for any loss, damage or destruction of any property, whether owncd by the cnstomer or
others, caused in whole or pmt by the act or omissions of the Company, its agents and
its employees. Unless otherwise provided for by an ICB, title to all facilities and
intellectual property provided in accordance with this tariff remains in the Company,
its pmtners, agents, contractors, or suppliers. The Company is not obligated to
compensate, defend, or indemnify the Customcr or any other person for alleged or
adjudicated claims of infringement by third parties for any services offered, or for any
liccnsing or COUlt costs related thereto.

b. The Company will not be liable for any direct, indirect, incidental, special,
consequential, exemplary or punitive damages to Customer as a result of any Company
service, equipment or facilities, or the acts or omissions or negligence of the Company's
employees or agents.

c. The Company shall not be liable for any delay or failure of performance or equipment
due to causes beyond its control, inclnding but not limited to: acts of God, fire, flood,
explosion or other catastrophes; any law, order, regnlation, direction, action, or request
of the United States Government or any state and local governments having or claiming
jurisdiction over the Company, or of any depmtment, agency, commission, bureau,
corporation, or other instrumcntality of anyone or more of these federal, state, or local
governments, or of any civil or militmy authority; national emergencies; insurrections;
riots; wars; unavailability of rights-of-way or materials; or strikes, lock-outs, work
stoppages, or other labor difficulties when it does not involve the Company's
employees.

3. THE COMPANY MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTAnONS, EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED EITHER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW, STATUTORY OR
OTHERWISE, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS

Issued:
Issued by: Bruce A. White, Secretary
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NextGen Communications, Inc. (NextGen)

SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS, CONTINUED

Tariff No. I
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FOR A PARTICULAR USE, EXCEPT THOSE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN.

4. Invasions of Privacy

a. The customer agrees to release, indemnify, and hold harmless the Company for any
infringement or invasion of the right ofprivacy of any person or persons, caused or
claimed to have been caused, directly or indirectly, by the installation, operation, failure
to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, occasion or use of any service
features and the equipment associated therewith provided pursuant to this Tariff, or by
any services furnished by the Company in connection therewith, including, but not
limited to, the identification of the telephone number, address or name associated with
the telephone used by persons accessing 9-1-1 service hereunder, and which arises out
of the negligence or other wrongful act of the Company, except gross negligence, or the
employees or agents of anyone of them. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such
indemnification does not apply to Company's use of customer data for any purpose
other than the provision of9-1-1 services.

b. The Company shall be indemnified, defended and held harmlcss by the Customer
against any claim, loss or damage arising from Customer's use of services, involving
claims for libel, slander, or allegations of infringement of patent or copyright arising
from the Customer's own communications.

2.2. Gcncral Tcrms and Conditions

1. Term of Service; Termination.

The Company and each customer may enter into a separate agreement spccifying the term during
which the Company shall provide Services.

2. Payments; Late Fees

Payment for Services provided by the Company shall be due in accordance with the terms and
conditions of each customer's contract. Customer agrees to pay a late fee in accordance with the
terms and conditions of each customer's contract, but in no event to exceed the late fees which
may be charged to customer under the laws of the State ofMissouri.

Issued:
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SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS, CONTINUED

3. Attorneys' Fees

The Company and each customer may enter into a separate agreement specifying that if any
dispute in connection with the provision of Services to customer is submitted to a COUlt, arbitrator,
tribunal or other appropriate entity, then all costs and expenses ofthe parties (including
reasonable attorneys' fees) will be paid by the party against whom a determination by such COlllt,

arbitrator, tribunal or entity is made, or, in the absence of a determination, wholly against one
party, as such court, arbitrator, tribunal or entity directs.

2.3. Notices and Communications

1. The Customer shall designate the address to which the Company shall mail or deliver all notices
and other communications, except that the Customer may also designate a separate address to
which Company bills for service shall be mailed. The Company shall designate an address to
which the Customer shall mail or deliver all notices and other communications, except that
Company may designate a separate address on each bill for service to which the Customer shall
mail payment on that bill.

2. Except as otherwise stated in this tariff, or an ICB, all notices or other communications required
to be given pursuant to this tariff, or an ICB, or the Agreement for Services will be in writing.
Notices and other communications of either patty, and all bills mailed by the Company, shall be
presumed to have been delivered to the other patty on the third business day following placement
of the notice, communication or bill with the U.S. Mail or a private delivery service, prepaid and
properly addressed, or when actually received or refused by the addressee, whichever occurs first.

3. The Company or the Customer shall advise the other party of any changes to the addresses
designated for notices, other communications or billing, by following the procedures for giving
notice set forth herein, or as may be required in an ICB.

Issued:
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NextGen Communications, Inc. (NextGen)

SECTION 3. SERVICE OFFERINGS AND FEATURES

3.1. DescrIption of Services

1. Enhanced Universal Emergency Number Service (E9-1-1 Service)

Tariff No. 1
Original- Page 13

a. Enhanced Emergency Number Service, also referred to as E9-1-1, is a telephone
communication service whereby one or more Public Safety Answering Points (PSAP)
designated by the local 9-1-1 authority may receive telephone calls dialed to the telephone
number 9-1-1. Traditional E9-1-1 Service has typically included lines and equipment within
one telephone company exchange and/or area served by a Mobile Telephone Switching
Office, which could be connected to lines and equipment in another telcphone company
exchange to pennit answering, transferring and dispatching of public emergency telephone
9-1-1 calls originated by persons within the same serving area.

However, E9-1-1 Service may become more decentralized insofar that no single company
may provide all of the E9-1-1 hardware, software, or features. The use of twisted pair
telephone "lines" is becoming obsolete, replaced by broadband IP connectivity via cable or
DSL or other dedicated IP networks. The Company anticipates that different companies
shall provide the IP E9-1-1 infrastmcture, while other companies provide the E9-1-1 content,
features, and functions. This tariff identifies the rules, regulations, and prices that shall
govern the Company's offering of the E9-I-l features and functions.

b. Enhanced 9-1-1 Service is offered subject to availability ofIP broadband facilities.

c. The E9-I-l customer may be:

(1) A municipality or other state or local governmental unit, or an authorized agent of
one or more municipalities or other state or local governmental units to whom
authority has been lawfully delegated. The customer must be legally authorized to
subscribe to the service and have public safety responsibility by law to respond to
telephone calls from the public for emergency police, fire or other emergency
services within the telephone areas arranged for 9-1-1 calling.

(2) A private telecommunications provider ofLEC, CLEC, wireless, or VoIP service
with an obligation to route emergency 9-1-1 calls to the appropriate PSAP.

(3) A private enterprise with a PBX telephone system with a desire and appropriate
state and/or federal authority to route emergency calls to the appropriate PSAP.

Issued:
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SECTION 3. SERVICE OFFERINGS AND FEATURES, CONTINUED

2. Private Switch/Automatic Location Identification Service

The Private Branch Exchange (PBX) switch located on a customer's premises sends Automatic
Number Identification information to an Enhanced 9- I- I (E9- I- I) Control Office or the
Company's E9-1-1 Call Routing Device from individual PBX stations for the purpose of
providing site or station location information on an E9-1-1 call, or for selectively routing that call
to the appropriate Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP). A PS/Location Database also is
available to CentrexiCENTRON or VoIP enterprise customers who wish to provide the E9-I-l
system with more specific location and routing information. These are the only intended uses for
this service.

3. E9-1-1 Call Routing Device Service

The E9-1-1 Call Routing Device service will connect local telecommunications or VoIP
switches via IP and will route the calls to one or more PSAPs via IP or circuit switched
technology as required by the PSAP.

4. Location Database Service

The Company Location Database will provide the 9-1-1- caller's name, address, phone
number, and location (if available) to the PSAP via IP simultaneously with the voice call as it
is routed via the IP Call Routing Device. As other content becomes available, the Company
will provide such content. For legacy PSAPs with traditional ALI requirements, the
Company will provide appropriate connectivity to the Company Location Database. The
Company will provide access for authorized users to update Location Database data.

5. Terms and Conditions

a. These services are limited to the use of the central office, VoIP, or mobile telephone
switching office telephone number, 9- I-I, as the universal emergency telephone number.
The Company does not provide the telephone number or dial tone. These services will be
provided by the telecommunications carrier.

b. The 9-1- I emergency telephone number is not intended as a replacement for the
telephone service of the various public safety agencies which participate in the use of
this number. The public safety agencies will subscribe to other telephone services as
provided in other tariffs/price lists of other providers.

c. E9- I-I Service is furnished to the customer only for the purpose of receiving repOlts
from the public of emergencies or similar events appropriate for action by a PSAP.

d. E9- I-I Service provides a one-way incoming service to the appropriate PSAP.
Outgoing calls can only be made on a transfer basis 01' to reconnect a disconnected
incoming 9- I-I call.

Issued:
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SECTION 3. SERVICE OFFERINGS AND FEATURES, CONTINUED

e. E9-1-1 Service is provided solely for the benefit of the customer operating the PSAP, 01'

for the carrier providing telecommunications 01' data communications service to
individuals. The provision of the E9-1-1 Service by the Company shall not be
interpreted, construed, 01' regarded, either expressly 01' implied, as being for the benefit of
01' creating any Company obligation toward any third person 01' legal entity other than the
customer(s). The Company does undettake to provide E9-1-1 services using facilities
obtained by the PSAP to enable the PSAPs personnel to respond to emergency calls on
the PSAPs premises. The PSAP is responsible for the provision and maintenance of
cable and wire facilities on the PSAPs side of the Demarcation Point.

f. Temporary suspension of service at reduced rate is not provided for any part of the
E9-1-1 Service.

g. E9-1-1 information consisting of the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of
telephone customers of carriers using Company service is confidential. This information
will be provided via Location Database data on a call-by-call basis only for the purpose
of responding to emergency calls.

h. The E9-1-1 calling party forfeits the privacy afforded by non-listed and non-published
service to the extent that the telephone number, address, and name associated with the
originating station location are furnished to the PSAP.

i. Default Routing will be provided in lieu of Selective Routing and ANI!ALI Display for
E9-I-l systems served from central offices 01' mobile telephone switching offices not
equipped to transmit ANI.

j. The rates charged for E9-1-1 Service do not contemplate the inspection 01' 100 percent
constant monitoring of facilities to discover errors, defects, and malfunctions in the service,
nor does the Company undertake such responsibility. The customer shall make such
operational tests as, in the judgment of the customer(s), are required to determine whether
the system is functioning properly for its use. The customer(s) shall notify the Company
promptly in the event the system is not functioning properly.

I. It is the obligation of the E9-1-1 authority to make arrangements to handle all E9-1-1
calls that originate from telephones served by central offices in the local service area,
whether 01' not the calling telephone is situated on property within the geographical
boundaries of the E9-1-1 authority's public safety jurisdiction.
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SECTION 3. SERVICE OFFERINGS AND FEATURES, CONTINUED

m. Applications for E9-1-1 Service must be executed in writing by each PSAP or 9-1-1
authority. If application for service is made by an agent, the Company must be provided in
writing with satisfactory proof of appointment ofthe agent by the customer.

n. The PSAP or 9-1-1 authority is required to furnish the Company its agreement to the
following terms and conditions. The PSAP or 9-1-1 authority will subscribe to or
provide telephone equipment with a capacity adequate to handle the number of
incoming E9-1-1 calls recommended by the Company. The PSAP or 9-1-1 authority is
to insure that PSAP premises equipment selected to operate E9-1-1 system features is
compatible with the service furnished by the Company. The PSAP or 9-1-1 authority is
responsible for the provision and maintenance of cable and wire facilities on the 9-1-1
authority's side of the Demarcation Point.

o. When the Selective Routing (or comparable) feature is provided, PSAP is responsible
for identifying primary and secondary PSAP locations and the unique combinations of
police, fire and ambulance or any other appropriate agencies responsible for providing
emergency service. The PSAP is responsible for identifying the E9-I-l serving area
and for associating the Company-provided Emergency Service Numbers with the
street address ranges 01' other criteria for selective routing of calls. Legacy ESNs may
be used. ESNs will be carried in the Data Management System (OMS) 01' equivalent
to permit routing of 9-1-1 calls to the primary and secondmy PSAPs responsible for
handling of calls from each telephone in the E9-1-1 serving area. The following terms
define the 9-1-1 authority's responsibility in providing this information.

(I) Initial and subsequent ESN assignments by street name, address range and area
or other mutually agreed upon routing criteria shall be fUl'l1ished by the 9-1-1
authority to the Company prior to the effective date of service. If the PSAP has
legacy ESNs assigned by previous E9-1-1 service providers, these ESNs may
be retained if the PSAP prefers.

(2) After establishment of service, it is the PSAP's responsibility to continue to
verify the accuracy of routing information contained in the address file and to
advise the Company of any changes in street names, establishment of new
streets, changes in address numbers used on existing streets, closing and
abandonment of streets, changes in police, fire, ambulance 01' other appropriate
agencies, jurisdiction over any address, annexations and other changes in
municipal and county boundaries, incorporation of new cities or any other
matter that will affect the routing ofE9-1-1 calls to the proper PSAP.

(3) The Company will provide; with reasonable frequency to the 9-1-1 authority,
upon request a complete electronic copy of the address file previously supplied
to the Company by the 9-1-1 authority to pel'lnit the 9-1-1 authority to verify
accuracy of the police, fire, and ambulance PSAP routing designation.
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SECTION 3. SERVICE OFFERINGS AND FEATURES, CONTINUED

(4) Changes, deletions, and additions which the PSAP desires to have made in the
address file should be submitted on an "as occurred" basis.

(5) The Company will furnish an electronic copy to the 9-1-1 authority for
verifications showing each change, deletion, and addition to thc address file.

3.2. Private Switch/Location Databasc Scrvice

I. Terms and Conditions

a. Private Switch! Automatic Location Identification

(1) In a Private Switch!Location Database service application, the Private Branch
Exchange (PBX) owner/operator (or Centrex/similar service customer) must
meet the following requirements: Application for Private Switch/Location
Database Service must be executed in writing by each PBX customer. If
application for service is made by an agent, the Company must be provided in
writing with satisfactory proof of appointment of the agent by the customer.

(2) The customer will coordinate with the E9-1-1 Public Jurisdiction to ensure that
area boundaries are identified and that any required additions or modifications to
the Master Location Validation System are provided to the Company.

(3) The customer will provide full local Automatic Number Identification (ANI) for
every station within the PBX. The information must be approved by the
Company prior to implementation to ensure that no conflict exists between the
PBX's numbering plan and the numbering plans of other PBXs or
telecommunications carriers.

(4) ANI multi-frequency signaling must conform to the specifications
established by the Company.

(5) The customer must create, maintain and forward to the Company, current
telephone number and address data in the format and time intervals negotiated
between the Company and the customer.

(6) The PBX must be cOlmected to the E9-1-1 Call Routing Device office via IP
circuits. The PBX must route 9-1-1 calls to the IP 9-1-1 facilities without
overflowing to any other access facility. The Company recommends the enterprise
customer order or maintains diverse IP connectivity to provide redundancy to the
system.
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SECTION 3. SERVICE OFFERINGS AND FEATURES, CONTINUED

(7) The enterprise customer must develop and implement procedures to prevent the
unauthorized or illegal use ofPrivate SwitchILocation Database tmnks. These
dedicated trunks may not be used for any purpose other than 9-1-1.

(8) The customer must use personal computer hardware and software (or PC
equivalent hardware and software) for ongoing customer record update
programs and processes that conform to specifications established by the
Company.

b. Diversification and Redundancy

Customers can request diversification and redundancy of any or all IP facility routes.. These
IP facilitics shall be provided by the appropriate ISP selected by the customer(s).
Additional charges for such service utilizing the facilities, or the constmction and
provisioning thereof, will be the responsibility of the customer and will be assessed by the
ISP.

3.3. E9-1-1 Trunks

I. E9-1-1 Trunks are high speed broadband IP or equivalent data-only circuits which:

a. Originate from the Company Call Routing Device and terminate at PSAP premises demarcation;
or

b. Originate from the local exchange carrier end office (LEC or CLEC) and terminate at the
Company E9-1-1 Call Routing Device; 01'

c. Originate from the mobile telephone switching office and terminate at the Company E9-I-l Call
Routing Device; 01'

d. Originate from any VolP Service Provider softswitch and terminate at the Company E9-1-1 Call
Routing Device; or

e. Originate from any enterprise VoIP PBX softswitch and terminate at the Company E9-1-1 Call
Routing Device; 01'

f. Originate from any Emergency Services Gateway and terminate at the Company E9-1-1 Call
Routing Device

2. The E9-1-1 Trunks are provided for the purpose oftransporting only E9-1-1 traffic
information.

3. E9-1-1 traffic from various enterprises, LECs, CLECs, mobile switching centers, and/or
ESGWs may be combined on a single IP circuit.
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SECTION 3. SERVICE OFFERINGS AND FEATURES, CONTINUED

3.4. E9-1-1 Call Routing Device

The E9-I-l Call Routing Device will be able to provide two services:

1. Aggregation

The Call Routing Device can aggregate E9-1-1 calls originating from multiple sources in multiple
9-1-1 jurisdictions into IP circuits that terminate at the appropriate PSAPs demarcation point. The
PSAP does not need to designate or arrange for the connectivity between the local
telecommunications carrieres) to the Call Routing Device, or from the Call Routing Device to the
customer premises demarcation point. The PSAP or 9-1-1 authority is obligated to acquire
connectivity to the IP network.

2. Alternate Routing

It is the customer's responsibility to designate the alternate location if traffic is to be
routed to a secondary PSAP.

3.5. Automatic Number Identification (ANI)

Automatic Number Identification (ANI) is the feature by which the telephone number or other related
routing (pANI) number associated with an inbound 9 -1-1 caller is received by the Company and
passed on to the propel' PSAP. The ANI is also used to determine the propel' PSAP to receive the
inbound call.

3.6. ALI Management Service

1. MSAG Management

The Company provides a data managemcnt and administration tool that automates the
viewing and communication of updates, insertions, and deletions to the MSAG
database.

2. MSAG Build Services

The Company acts as the facilitator with the addressing authority in the creation and
maintenance of the MSAG utilizing recognized National Emergency Number
Association (NENA) standards.

3. Subscriber Record Management

Subscriber Record Management is the collection of service order records from
Telephone Service Providers (TSPs), validation of those records against the
MSAG, and storage of the records for the generation of the ALI database.
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SECTION 3. SERVICE OFFERINGS AND FEATURES, CONTINUED

4. ALI Database Updates

After processing and validating subscriber record updates, the Company posts ALI
records for call routing and for retrieval and display by the PSAP during 9-1-1 calls.

5. ANI/ALI Discrepancy Resolution

An ANI/ALI discrepancy occurs when an ALI record delivered to a PSAP does not match the
information of the caller. The Company will investigate ANI/ALI discrepancy reports and refer
each discrepancy to the respective TSP for resolution.
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SECTION 4. RATES, CHARGES, AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE

Tariff Price TariffPrice

Feature Non-Recurring Fcc Recuning Fee

Private Switch/Automatic Location Identification ICB ICB
Scrvice
E911 Call Routing Device Service ICB ICB

Selective Routing (data) ICB ICB

Location Database Service ICB ICB
Mastel' Location Validation System Management ICB ICB

Administer Pseudo ANI (per record) ICB ICB

E911 Trunks ICB ICB

Automatic Number Identification (ANI) ICB ICB

ALI Management Servicc ICB ICB

4.1. Rates By Individual Contract Basis (ICB)

In lieu of the rates otherwise set forth in this tariff, rates and charges, ineiuding minimum usage,
installation, and recuning charges for the Company's serviccs may be established at negotiated rates on an
individual contract basis (ICB), taking into account the natme of the facilitics and services, the costs of
construction and operation, the volume of traffic, the length of service commitment by the Customer, and
use of facilities by othcr customers. Such arrangements shall be considered Special Pricing Arrangements,
the terms of which will be sct fOlth in individual Customer contracts. Howcver, unless otherwise specified,
the terms, conditions, obligation and regulation set forth in this tariff shall be incorporated into, and become
a pmt of, said contract, and shall be binding on the Company and the Customer. Specialized rates or
charges will be made available to similarly situated customers on a non-discriminatOlY basis. The
Company reserves the right to protection from public diseiosure of proprietary information contained in
such contracts as allowed under law. .

In addition to the charges specifically for the customer's services, there may be additional smcharges as
mandatcd by the Missouri Public Service Commission, other Missomi authorities, and / or the Federal
Communications Commission. The customer is hereby notified that these fees, as applicable, will be added
to the customer's bill and that the rates may change periodically. No prior notice of any change will bc
provided to the customer. The then-current smcharge rate will be applied to the customer's bill even ifthis
tariff has not been updated.
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SECTION 4. RATES, CHARGES, AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE, CONTINUED

4.2. Application for Service

I. Requests for this service:

a. can only be initiated by a 9-1-1 customer, a PSAP, or authorized state agency;

b. must be provided to the Company in writing; and

c. must identify service locations and arrangements.

2. Customer Obligations

a. The Customer is respousible for making proper application for service; placing any necessary
order, complying with tariff regulations; and payment of charges for services provided.

b. Specific Customer responsibilities include, but are not limited to the following:

(I) the payment of all applicable charges pursuant to this tariff 01' an ICB;

(2) damage to or loss of Company facilities or equipment caused by the acts or omissions
of the Customer; 01' the noncompliance by the Customer, with these regulations; 01' by fire
or theft 01' other casualty on the Customer Premises, unless caused by the negligence 01'

willful misconduct of the employees or agents of the Company;

(3) providing at no charge, as specified from time to time by the Company, any needed
personnel, equipment space and power to operate Company facilities and equipment
installed on the premises of the Customer, and the level of heating and air conditioning
necessary to maintain the propel' operating environment on such premises;

(4) obtaining, maintaining, and otherwise having full responsibility for all rights-of-way
and conduits necessary for installation of communications cable and associated equipment
used to provide services to the Customer from the cable building entrance 01' property line
to the location of the equipment space described herein;

(5) any and all costs associated with obtaining and maintaining the rights-of-way
described herein, including the costs ofaltering the stl'Ucture to permit installation of the
Company-provided facilities, shall be borne entirely by, or may be charged by the
Company to, the Customer (the Company may require the Customer to demonstrate its
compliance with this section prior to accepting an order for service);
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SECTION 4. RATES, CHARGES, AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE, CONTINUED

(6) providing a safe place to work and complying with all laws and regulations regarding
the working conditions on the premises at which Company employees and agents shall be
installing or maintaining Company facilities and equipment. The Customer may be
required to install and maintain Company facilities and equipment within a hazardous area
if, in the Company opinion, injury or damage to Company employees or property might
result from installation or maintenance by the Company. The Customer shall be
responsible for identifYing, monitoring, removing and disposing of any hazardous material
(e.g. asbestos) prior to any construction or installation work;

(7) complying with all laws and regulations applicable to, and obtaining all consents,
approvals, licenses and permits as may be required with respect to, the location of
Company facilities and equipment in any Customer premises or the rights-of-way for
which Customer is responsible under this tariff, and granting or obtaining permission for
Company agents or employees to enter the premises of the Customer at any time for the
purpose of installing, inspecting, maintaining, repairing, or upon termination of service as
stated herein, removing the facilities or equipment of the Company; and

(8) not creating, or allowing to be placed, any liens or other encumbrances on Company
equipment or facilities.

c. Customer will comply with all applicable provisions of this tariff and/or an ICB.

d. The telecommunications service provider will create, maintain, and forward to the Company
current telephone number(s) and address data according to the format and procedures specified by
the Company.

e. The PSAP must develop and implement procedures to prevent the unauthorized or illegal use of
Company Next Gen 9-1-1 services. These dedicated facilities may not be used for any purpose
other than for 9-1-1 service.

f. The PSAP must use computer hardware and software for ongoing Private Switch End User
(PSEU) record update programs and processes that conform to the specifications outlined by the
Company.

g. PSIALI Service information consisting of the name, address, and telephone number of PSEUs is
confidential. The 9-1-1 customer agrees to use such information only for the purpose of
responding to emergency calls.

h. The PSEU forfeits the privacy afforded by non-listed and non-published service to the extent that
the telephone number, the address, and name associated with the originating station location are
furnished to the PSAP and to the Company. The PSEU (published and non-published) consents to
the storage and retention of PSEU name, telephone number, and address in the data base and also
consents to access to this information by the PSAP for the sole purpose of responding to an
emergency call.
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SECTION 4. RATES, CHARGES, AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE, CONTINUED

i. Cancellation of the service in whole 01' in patt by the 9-1-1 customer prior to establishment
thereof, will require payment to the Company of an amount equal to the cost of engineering,
manufacturers' billings resulting from equipment orders, installation, assembly, labor, cost of
removal and any other costs incurred by the Company up to the time of cancellation resulting
from the 9-1-1 customer's order for service. This requirement may be superseded by an explicit
Cancellation Clause in the ICB contract with the customer.

j. Temporary suspension of service at the request of the customer, either pattial or complete, is not
applicable.

4.3. Contracts

Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, all services not defined in
this tariff and/or as required by the customer will be provided for in an ICB between the Company and the
customer.

4.4. Special Information Required on Forms

Due to the special and limited nature ofthe services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a govel'1lmental agency, any special information required of the customer will be
provided for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.

4.5. Establishment and Rccstablishmcnt of Credit

Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by thc Company, and the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a govel'1lmental agency, all credit requirements of the customer will be provided
for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.

4.6. Deposits

Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a govel'1lmental agency, all deposit requirements of the customer will be provided
for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.

4.7. Notices in ICB

Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a govel'1lmental agency, all notice requirements between the customer and the
Company may also be provided for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.

4.8. Issuance and Payment of Bills

Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a govel'1lmental agency, all billing procedures between the customer and the
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SECTION 4. RATES, CHARGES, AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE, CONTINUED

Company will be provided for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.

4.9. Discontinuance and Restoration of Service

Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a governmental agency, all terms and conditions for the discontinuance and/or
restoration of service will be provided for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.

4.10. Information on Sel-viees and Promotional Offerings

Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a governmental agency, the Company does not anticipate that it will offer any
promotional offerings.

4.11. Temporary Service

Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a governmental agency, all temporary service needs between the customer and the
Company will be provided for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.

4.12. Continuity of Service

Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a governmental agency, all determinations of interl'llptions of service, notice to the
customer, and apportionment of available services between the customer and the Company will be provided
for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.

4.13. Extension of Lines and Mains

Not applicable to the Company.

4.14. Facilities on Customers' Premises and Service Connections

Due to the special and limited nature of the services offered by the Company, and the requirement that the
customer be a carrier or a governmental agency, all procedures regarding the installation of the services,
and the respective rights ofthe Company and the customer regarding access to the customer's premises will
be provided for in an ICB between the Company and the customer.
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SECTION 5. SERVICE AREAS

5.1. Service Areas

NextGen proposes to provide service in the entire State of Missouri.
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